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Ogle County Liquor Commission Meeting 
Tentative Minutes 


 
May 19, 2009 


 
 
 


 
• Chm. Rice calls the meeting to order at 5:25 pm. 
 
• Members Present: Rice, Hopkins and Gronewold 
 
• Others Present: Laura Cook 
 
• Review Chisum’s Application for Special Events Liquor License for a Wedding Reception 


in rural Davis Junction – Hopkins moves to approve the Special Events Liquor License, 
Gronewold seconds. Motion carried. 


 
• Public Comment – none 
 
• There being no further business, Chm Rice adjourns the meeting at 5:28 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laura J. Cook 








 
 
 


Resolution 2009-0607 
 


Resolution to Authorize Long Range Planning Invoices     
 
 


WHEREAS, on June 9, 2009 the Ogle County Executive Committee reviewed a summary of proposed 
Long Range Planning expenses and, 


 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Ogle County Board authorizes payment of Long 


Range invoices totaling $112,881.06 for the following: 
 
SUPPLIER NAME DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT  


Old Limestone, LLC Watts Bldg. - July Rent $        5,800.00 


Holabird & Root, LLC Professional Svcs & Expenses for  4/01/09 to 4/30/09 $      20,597.50 


Marv Miller - Ted Gesin Complete Demolition of Courthouse $      21,250.00 


Federal Express Overnight Check to:  Henricksen & Company Inc. $             16.15 


Ogle County Collector 2008 R.E. Tax for 911 Center 920 Technology Pkwy $             55.42 


Holian Asbestos Removal Asbestos Removal - Courthouse $        7,615.00 


AR Remediation Corporation Lead Based Paint Mitigation-Courthouse $      56,027.00 


Fishers, Inc. Public Access workstation Assessment Office $           269.99 


Area Tree Service Topped (4) trees for satelite -  Watts Bldg. $        1,250.00 


        


  TOTAL: $    112,881.06 
 
 
Presented and Approved at the June 16, 2009, Ogle County Board Meeting. 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk 
 
                                                                                          ______________________ 
                                                                                          W. Ed Rice, Chairman 







SUMMARY OF MONTHLY BILLS
OGLE COUNTY LONG RANGE PLANNING COMMITTEE


Month of:__June, 2009_


SUPPLIER NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT


Old Limestone, LLC Watts Bldg. - July Rent 5,800.00$          


Holabird & Root, LLC Professional Svcs & Expenses for  4/01/09 to 4/30/09 20,597.50$        
   


Marv Miller - Ted Gesin Complete Demolition of Courthouse 21,250.00$        


Federal Express Overnight Check to:  Henricksen & Company Inc. 16.15$               


Ogle County Collector 2008 Real Estate Tax for 911 Center 55.42$               
     920 Technology Pkwy


Holian Asbestos Removal Asbestos Removal - Courthouse 7,615.00$          
      


AR Remediation Corporation Lead Based Paint Mitigation-Courthouse 56,027.00$        


Fishers, Inc. Public Access workstation Assessment Office 269.99$             


Area Tree Service Topped (4) trees for satelite -  Watts Bldg. 1,250.00$          
    


TOTAL: 112,881.06$      
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Personnel & Salary – County Clerk & Recorder Committee  
 


Wednesday, June 10, 2009  
 


Tentative Minutes 
 


 
1. Call to Order: Chairman Kenney calls the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. 
 
2. Members present:  Colbert, Boes, Saunders, Bowers and Heuer 
 
3. Approval of Minutes: May 13, 2009 Meeting minutes: Bowers motioned to approve minutes.  


Saunders 2nd.  Motion carried.   
 
4. Approval of Bills:  


 County Clerk Huntley presented bills for approval.  Bowers motioned to pay bills in 
the amount of $2,427.99.  Heuer 2nd.  Motion carried.   


 Huntley mentioned that the LRP committee recommended using the Insurance Fund 
for mileage expenses for mail pick-up of Watt Building employees, but isn’t sure 
that’s the best place, although she would prefer not to have to absorb the additional 
$1,200 estimated expense from her budget 


 Huntley also applauded Dynamic Horizons for coming in under the expense estimate 
of $2000 for moving the recording equipment.  The actual expense was only $1700, 
and everything was running smoothly that first Monday morning of operation after 
the move.  


5. Public Comment: 
 Chairman Rice instructed all Board members present to be sure to read through their 


packets for next week’s Board meeting.  LRP has recommended EVS as the 
contractor and supporting information will be in the packets 


 Kenney reminded people that Nick Sakellariou will also be present at the Board 
meeting to explain the implications of the Circuit Clerk’s union contract, so board 
members should read through that contract carefully, as well as the Sheriff Clerk’s 
contract given implications of the “Me Too” clause in the Circuit Clerk’s contract.  
Rice noted the purpose of the time with Sakellariou is for him to explain the 
implications of the “Me Too” clause and answer questions so that everyone hears the 
same thing at the same time.  Discussion followed as the committee has many 
unanswered questions regarding how the contract impacts various salary 
administration policies and procedures.  It was agreed that Meggon McKinley would 
ask the Board Members to respond to her with questions they would like Sakellariou 
to answer so she can get them to him ahead of time.   


 Boes noted concern about the $250 signing clause, and discussion followed noting 
that the $250 signing bonus was designed to adjust everyone’s pay by Dec 1, 2008 
but we couldn’t implement it before the new budget because we didn’t have a signed 
Circuit Clerk contract at that time  


 Two questions the Personnel Committee would like to ask Nick Sakellariou are:   
a. How does the Circuit Clerk’s contract with the “Me Too” clause impact the County’s 


starting wage across both union and non-union employees? 
b. Does Ogle County have a right to observe the Circuit Clerk union negotiations to 


obtain, first hand, a clear understanding of budget impact?        
 







6. County Clerk & Recorder Report: 
 Rebecca Huntley reported that documents are up because of so many refinances. 


County revenue is down because of fewer deeds and fewer stamps for the deeds.    
 Huntley distributed her 2010 projected budget and asked people to read it and contact 


her with questions so it can be brought to a vote at the next meeting.   
 Huntley also updated the Committee on various fees her office collects 
 Huntley does not expect an amended budget as she is able to absorb necessary 


expenses in her 2009 budget.     
   


7. New Business: 
 Personnel Manual & Review Process: Rebecca Huntley distributed the current 


Personnel Manual.  Committee Chairman Kenney asked members to take time to 
review this document and come prepared to the next committee meeting to make a 
recommendation to implement this manual with any noted policy updates.  Additional 
policies discussed as possible additions include Steve Rypkema’s expense report 
form, travel policy, and expense policy.  He will work with Meggon McKinley to 
distribute these for review prior to the next meeting.   


 Payments in Vacation: The committee voiced concern regarding the growing dollar 
amount of payments in vacation, which are often as large as the bills submitted to 
Committees for payment.  Saunders noted concern that these payments bypass the 
committee review process and create additional work outside the normal bill payment 
cycles. She recalls Bill Spencer passing a resolution stating payment in vacation was 
reserved for utilities, payroll, and some emergency billing.  Meggon McKinley agreed 
to work with the department heads to gain a better understanding of valid needs for 
payments in vacation and help minimize unnecessary requests.  The Committee also 
asked her to identify specific credit card issuance and reimbursement needs within the 
departments since this often makes up a large portion of the payments in vacation 
amounts, presumably because we don’t want to miss timely payments and incur 
additional fees or interest.  The Committee would like to know if there is opportunity 
to change billing cycles to allow these to flow into the normal bill pay process.  
Treasurer Coffman noted that if the volumes and needs are significant enough, we 
may want to consider moving to a County Purchasing card option, which allows 
specific limits and more controllable billing cycles.   


 
8. Old Business: No further updates 


 
9. Adjournment: At 11:30 a.m. Kenney adjourns the meeting 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Meggon McKinley 
Ogle County Administrator 








 
 
 
 
 


RESOLUTION  2009-0601 
 
 
 


 
 
Whereas, the Ogle Board Chairman has received a notice of resignation 
from Martin Portner, a member of the Lost Nation/New Landing RCD 
Board; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Ogle County Board 
does officially accept said resignation. 
 
 
 
 
Accepted by the Ogle County Board on June 16, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________    ______________________ 
W. Ed Rice                                                      Rebecca Huntley 
Ogle County Board Chairman                         Ogle County Clerk 
 
 
 
 












Ogle County 
Road & Bridge Committee 


Meeting Minutes 
 
June 9, 2009 
 
I. A. Meeting called to order at 10:00 AM by Chairman Huntley. 


Members present: Don Huntley, Lynne Kilker, Ben Diehl, Jim Barnes, Mel 
Messer, Ron Colson & Paul White.  
 


II. Received Bids 
A. No Bids received this month 
 


III. Reviewed May 12, 2009 Minutes. 
 A. Motion to approve minutes by – Lynne Kilker 
 B. Motion seconded by – Jim Barnes 
 C. Vote - All in Favor 
 
IV. Reviewed Bills and Payroll  
 A. Motion to approve by – Ben Diehl 
 B. Motion seconded by – Paul White 
 C.  Vote - All in Favor 
 
V. Petitions and Resolutions 


A. Steward Road Construction Stakeout contract with Willett, Hoffman &  
 Associates. Hourly fee with an estimated cost of $76,572. 


1. Motion to approve by – Mel Messer 
2. Motion seconded by – Ben Diehl 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


B. Eagle Point Road Hydraulic Study with Willett, Hofmann & Associates  
 preparing for the replacement of a structure on Eagle Point Road. Hourly  
 fee not to exceed $21,517.90.  


1. Motion to approve by – Jim Barnes 
2. Motion seconded by – Lynne Kilker 
3. Vote – All in Favor 







Road & Bridge Committee 
June 9, 2009 
p. 2 


 


 
 2 


 
VI.  Business & Communications 
 A. Unfinished Business 


1. The recent passage of a capital bill by the Illinois Legislature will 
provide a small boost to County MFT over the next 5 years, provided 
the bill stays in its’ current form and the Governor signs it. 
Unfortunately the passage would also raise the weight limit on 
County and Township roads to 80,000#. The “small boost” is less 
than 5% of what the cost will be to improve and maintain local roads 
at the 80,000# limit. Local agencies may have the option to post their 
roads at 73,280 as a remedy to the increased damage by larger 
vehicles without making the necessary pavement improvements. 


2. The Kings Crossing developer and the City of Rochelle are working 
together, with the County Engineer’s input, on the phasing of 
proposed improvements to Flagg Rd / 20th Street intersection. The 
developer is interested in beginning construction on the intersection 
and 20th Street extension this Summer. 


3. Bids are being taken on June 12th in Springfield on the Ogle County  
 Stimulus project, microsurfacing of Freeport and Milledgeville  
 Roads. 


 B. New Business 
1. I.A.C.E. Legislative Committee – See Capital program discussions. 
2. I.A.C.E. Revenue Fact Finding Committee – See capital program 


discussions. 
3. Next Meeting – Tuesday July 14, 2009, @ 10:00 AM, 


Lettings: None Scheduled 
4. 2009 Project Status Report: 


    Flagg / 251 Intersection  -paving phase 2, closed Flagg Rd 
East on 6/8. 


    Steward Road overpass -bridge pier stems poured, 
earthwork continues. 


    Oregon Fiber Optic job -Complete 
    Guardrail spraying   -Complete 
    Woodlawn Road paving -Complete 
    Flagg Road paving   -Complete 
    Stillman Road paving -Complete 
    Edson Rd bridge repairs -begins early July. 
    Mud Creek Rd paving -Striping complete this week. 
    Bituminous patching - 60% complete 
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    Crackfilling   -Complete 
    Brookville Rd culvert -Next week 
    Brick Church Rd culvert -late June 
    Quarry Rd culvert  -early July 
  5. All Summer employees have begun work. Mowing and plat scanning  
   are both progressing well. 


6. 2010 proposed County Highway budget will be discussed at 
Committee next month. 


 
VII. Public Comment 
 There was no public comment at this time. 
 
VIII. Meeting adjourned at 11:12 A.M. by Chairman Huntley. 
 
 
Minutes submitted by Curtis D. Cook, PE 

















Fund: 200 - County Highway
Department: 17 - Highway


Account: 4180 - Medical Exams/ Drug Testing
1386 - KSB 234.00 CH fund - pre-exam fee/D Burright Paid by Check # 71954 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 234.00


Account Total: Medical Exams/ Drug Testing 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $234.00


Account: 4212 - Electricity
1156 - COMED COMHWY0509 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 71945 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 889.67


Account Total: Electricity 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $889.67


Account: 4216.10 - Telephone
1773 - MCI MCIHWY0509 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 71956 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 53.34
1265 - VERIZON 2010115804 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 72035 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 462.95


Account Total: Telephone 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $516.29


Account: 4412 - Official Publications
1502 - OGLE COUNTY LIFE 0405 CH fund - legal notices Paid by Check # 71962 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 42.08


Account Total: Official Publications 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $42.08


Account: 4422 - Travel Expenses, Dues & Seminars
1846 - BUSINESS CARD BUSHWY0509 CH fund - mtg expenses Paid by Check # 71942 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 561.89
1884 - CURTIS COOK CDCHWY0509 CH fund - reimburse for mtg 


expenses
Paid by Check # 71946 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 144.04


Account Total: Travel Expenses, Dues & Seminars 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $705.93


Account: 4474 - Deer Expense
1876 - ROCHELLE WASTE 
DISPOSAL, LLC


182210 CH fund - deer expense Paid by Check # 71965 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 60.00


1876 - ROCHELLE WASTE 
DISPOSAL, LLC


181509 CH fund - deer expense Paid by Check # 71965 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 75.00


Account Total: Deer Expense 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $135.00


Account: 4490 - Contingencies
1587 - ROCHELLE DISPOSAL 
SERVICE


IS00015419 CH fund - contingencies Paid by Check # 71964 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 120.00


Account Total: Contingencies 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $120.00


Account: 4510 - Office Supplies
1500 - OGLE COUNTY HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT


KITHWY0509 CH fund - replenish misc. funds Paid by Check # 71961 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 297.08


1246 - FISCHER'S 26048 CH fund - office supplies Paid by Check # 72027 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 3.09


Account Total: Office Supplies 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $300.17


Account: 4540 - Repairs & Maint - Facilities
3326 - RALEY NURSERY INC. 2302 CH fund - trees Paid by Check # 72034 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 3,150.00
1871 - HOWARD LEE & SONS INC 42105 CH Fund - fuel tank leak testing Paid by Check # 72045 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 450.00


Account Total: Repairs & Maint - Facilities 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $3,600.00


Account: 4545.10 - Petroleum Products -
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3113 - BP 530181 CH Fund - gas Paid by Check # 72043 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 22.04


Account Total: Petroleum Products - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $22.04


Account: 4610.10 - Maint of Roads & Bridges -
2647 - MARTIN & COMPANY 
EXCAVATING


18494 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 72029 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 887.00


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $887.00


Account: 4610.30 - Maint of Roads & Bridges -
1863 - MARTENSON TURF 
PRODUCTS, INC.


30688 CH fund - r-o-w seeding & erosion 
material


Paid by Check # 71955 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 2,532.90


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $2,532.90


Account: 4610.40 - Maint of Roads & Bridges -
3436 - THE DALTON'S 25510 CH fund - 2009 guard rail spraying Paid by Check # 71968 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 8,750.00
3039 - NORTHERN CONTRACTING, 
INC.


3150 CH fund - guard rail repairs Paid by Check # 71960 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 1,367.65


3039 - NORTHERN CONTRACTING, 
INC.


3151 CH fund - guard rail repairs Paid by Check # 71960 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 1,045.15


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges - 3 Invoice Transaction(s) $11,162.80


Account: 4610.90 - Maint of Roads & Bridges
2503 - ADESTA, LLC 60010719 CH fund - julie locates Paid by Check # 71940 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 232.83
2503 - ADESTA, LLC 60010719R CH Fund - balance due for julie 


locates
Paid by Check # 72041 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 6.84


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $239.67


Account: 4620.10 - Repair Parts -
2138 - MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT 5137400 CH fund - truck lights Paid by Check # 71958 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 420.68
2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


415224 CH fund - truck repairs Paid by Check # 71944 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 371.28


2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


114039054 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 71944 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 71.02


2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


415127 CH fund - truck repairs Paid by Check # 71944 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 625.54


1535 - PETERS GMC 19354 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 72033 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 60.60
1535 - PETERS GMC 19356 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 72033 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 60.60
1535 - PETERS GMC 19447 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 72033 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 84.80
1535 - PETERS GMC 92600 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 72033 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 28.80


Account Total: Repair Parts - 8 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,723.32


Account: 4620.30 - Repair Parts -
1875 - ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS, 
INC.


0122679-IN CH fund - broom tractor part Paid by Check # 71969 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 351.40


1875 - ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS, 
INC.


0122486-IN CH fund - broom tractor part Paid by Check # 71969 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 484.10


1872 - FASTENAL COMPANY ILROH30449 CH fund - tractor parts Paid by Check # 72026 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 155.02
1872 - FASTENAL COMPANY ILROH30313 CH fund - tractor parts Paid by Check # 72026 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 133.98
1872 - FASTENAL COMPANY 43.52 CH fund - tractor parts Paid by Check # 72026 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 43.52
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Account Total: Repair Parts - 5 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,168.02


Account: 4620.40 - Repair Parts -
1206 - DIXON OTTAWA 
COMMUNICATIONS


1000946 CH fund - radio serviced Paid by Check # 71948 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 25.00


1206 - DIXON OTTAWA 
COMMUNICATIONS


89.34 CH fund - radio repairs Paid by Check # 71948 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 89.34


1206 - DIXON OTTAWA 
COMMUNICATIONS


5.80 CH fund - radio part Paid by Check # 71948 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 5.80


1206 - DIXON OTTAWA 
COMMUNICATIONS


138.50 CH fund - install new radio #4 Paid by Check # 72024 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 138.50


Account Total: Repair Parts - 4 Invoice Transaction(s) $258.64


Account: 4620.50 - Repair Parts -
1100 - BONNELL INDUSTRIES 0119846-IN CH fund - repair snow plow #14 Paid by Check # 72023 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 982.31


Account Total: Repair Parts - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $982.31


Account: 4620.60 - Repair Parts -
3560 - CRAIG'S EQUIPMENT SALES, 
REPAIRS AND RENTALS


19060 CH fund - chain saw parts Paid by Check # 71947 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 60.60


Account Total: Repair Parts - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $60.60


Account: 4620.99 - Repair Parts -
2049 - IDEAL METAL FAB., INC. IDEHWY0509b CH fund - rebuild water trailer Paid by Check # 71953 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 3,847.00


Account Total: Repair Parts - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $3,847.00


Account: 4640 - Sign & Striping Material
2487 - OSBURN ASSOCIATES, INC. 177611 CH fund - signs Paid by Check # 71963 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 186.40
2629 - ENNIS PAINT, INC. 10142212 CH fund - striping paint Paid by Check # 72025 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 21,285.00
2629 - ENNIS PAINT, INC. 10142083 CH fund - striping paint Paid by Check # 72025 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 8,276.40


Account Total: Sign & Striping Material 3 Invoice Transaction(s) $29,747.80


Account: 4640.99 - Sign & Striping Material -
2667 - MIDWEST SCALE 55951 CH fund - work on scales Paid by Check # 72030 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 150.00


Account Total: Sign & Striping Material - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $150.00


Account: 4650.10 - Hardware & Shop Supplies
1373 - BARNES DISTRIBUTION 0770212001 CH fund - nuts & bolts Paid by Check # 71941 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 143.92


Account Total: Hardware & Shop Supplies 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $143.92


Account: 4650.20 - Hardware & Shop Supplies
1434 - MENARDS 4076 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 71957 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 24.98
2176 - CCP INDUSTRIES, INC. IN00301212 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 71943 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 944.58
1603 - ROCKFORD INDUSTRIAL 
WELDING


02394737 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 71966 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 35.03


2653 - GALETON 722609A CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 71949 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 177.98
1873 - GRAINGER 9898822623 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 71951 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 101.03
1373 - BARNES DISTRIBUTION 0776603001 CH fund - shop tools Paid by Check # 72022 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 32.89
1373 - BARNES DISTRIBUTION 0776610001 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72022 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 101.35
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1872 - FASTENAL COMPANY ILROH25756 CH fund - shop supplies - credit Paid by Check # 72026 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 (182.54)
1872 - FASTENAL COMPANY ILROH25793 CH fund - shop supplies - credit Paid by Check # 72026 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 (87.78)
1872 - FASTENAL COMPANY ILROH30435 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72026 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 1,357.67
1872 - FASTENAL COMPANY ILROH29494 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72026 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 119.55
1925 - SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, 
INC.


0038995596 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72046 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 282.97


2024 - CERTIFIED LABORATORIES 505381 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72044 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 465.48
1676 - TERMINAL SUPPLY CO 74237-00 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72047 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 87.94
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17784 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 5.16
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17791 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 4.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17799 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 7.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17801 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 3.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17802 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 38.11
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17805 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 4.36
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17807 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 3.12
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17855 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 25.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17860 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 20.97
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17891 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 2.49
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17919 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 2.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17922 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 3.49
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17969 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 11.97
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17933 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 24.48
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 17990 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 33.96
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 18002 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 3.92
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 18028 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 3.10
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 18055 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 89.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 18070 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 12.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 18097 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 34.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 18110 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 29.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 18162 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 15.49
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 910156 CH Fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 72042 05/29/2009 05/29/2009 06/01/2009 05/29/2009 5.37


Account Total: Hardware & Shop Supplies 37 Invoice Transaction(s) $3,850.99


Account: 4650.40 - Hardware & Shop Supplies
1931 - HARDER HELSLEY 
ROCKFORD


RO42501 CH fund - janitor supplies Paid by Check # 71952 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 86.14


1931 - HARDER HELSLEY 
ROCKFORD


RO42501A CH fund - janitor supplies Paid by Check # 72028 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 37.35


Account Total: Hardware & Shop Supplies 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $123.49


Account: 4710 - Computer Hardware & Software
2945 - GLOBAL ENTERPRISE 
TECHNOLOGIES, INC.


16464 CH fund - internet switch Paid by Check # 71950 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 6,209.75


Account Total: Computer Hardware & Software 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $6,209.75


Account: 4730 - Equipment - New & Used
1616 - SAWICKI MOTOR COMPANY SAWHWY0509b CH fund - new truck w/ trade-in (#4) Paid by Check # 71967 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 19,165.00


Ogle County


Accounts Payable by G/L Distribution Report 
From Date: 05/12/2009 - To Date: 06/08/2009


Vendor Invoice No. Invoice Description Status
Held 
Reason


Invoice 
Date Due Date


Payment 
Date G/L Date Invoice Amount


.


User: Deb Bulthaus Pages: 4 of 5 6/8/2009 3:34:27 PM







Account Total: Equipment - New & Used 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $19,165.00


Account: 4748 - Engineering Equipment & Supplies
2771 - NEENAH FOUNDRY 
COMPANY


874590 CH fund - engr tool Paid by Check # 71959 05/18/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 05/19/2009 100.00


2697 - NU-METRICS 00000113559 CH fund - measuring devices Paid by Check # 72031 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 953.75


Account Total: Engineering Equipment & Supplies 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,053.75


Account: 4780.001 - Capital - Purchase of ROW
2171 - OGLE COUNTY COLLECTOR OGLHWY0509 CH fund - 2008 taxes for property in 


Flagg Center
Paid by Check # 72032 05/28/2009 05/28/2009 06/01/2009 05/28/2009 166.84


Account Total: Capital - Purchase of ROW 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $166.84


Department Total: Highway 91 Invoice Transaction(s) $90,038.98


Fund Total: County Highway 91 Invoice Transaction(s) $90,038.98


Grand Total: 91 Invoice Transaction(s) $90,038.98


. . . . . . . . . .


Ogle County


Accounts Payable by G/L Distribution Report 
From Date: 05/12/2009 - To Date: 06/08/2009


Vendor Invoice No. Invoice Description Status
Held 
Reason


Invoice 
Date Due Date


Payment 
Date G/L Date Invoice Amount


.


User: Deb Bulthaus Pages: 5 of 5 6/8/2009 3:34:27 PM





































































































































Resolution 2009-0605




































































































































































Resolution 2009-0604





















































Ogle County 2010 Projected Budget  
Planning Timeline 
June 8, 2009 
 
 
 
June 2009: Preliminary Budget Discussions (Dept 


Head/Admin/Committees) 
 
July 16, 2009:  Department Budgets Due to Administrator 
 
August 11, 12, 2009: Committee Budget Review  
 
September 9, 2009:  Initial Presentation to Finance Committee 
 
October 14, 2009:    Final Review by Finance Committee 
 
October 20, 2009:  Public Hearing / Initial Presentation to County Board 
 
November 17, 2009: Presentation and Adoption by County Board  
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SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND PLANNING
& ZONING COMMITTEE


of the
OGLE COUNTY BOARD


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE REPORT


JUNE 10, 2009


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee
of the Ogle County Board was held on Wednesday, June 10, 2009 at the Ogle County Sheriff’s
Department, Training Room, 103 Jefferson St., Oregon, IL.


The Order of Business is as follows:


1. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM


Chairman Lyle Hopkins called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M.  Roll call indicated six
members of the Committee were present; Chairman Lyle Hopkins, Ben Diehl, Mel Messer, 
Larry Boes, Dennis Williams, Jim Barnes.  Marcia Heuer arrived and joined the meeting at
1:05 P.M. 


2. READING AND APPROVAL OF REPORT OF MAY 13, 2009 MEETING AS MINUTES


Mr. Boes made a motion to approve the report of May 13, 2009 as minutes; seconded by
Mr.  Messer. The motion carried by a voice vote.


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS PORTION OF MEETING:


3. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS, AND
ACTION


Monthly bills of the Supervisor of Assessments were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $588.30.  Mr. Messer made a motion to approve the
payment of the bills in the amount of $588.30; seconded by Mr. Diehl.  The motion carried
by a voice vote.


4. OLD BUSINESS


Mr. Harrison stated the Farmland Assessment Review Committee met on June 2.  This
Committee is charged with reviewing the Illinois Department of Revenue’s proposed
farmland assessments, and soliciting public input as required by statute.


5. NEW BUSINESS


Mr. Harrison stated I would like to put a plug in for the maintenance staff and all they have
done to accommodate our needs with the move to Mt. Morris. We have been very satisfied
with all they have done.


PLANNING & ZONING PORTION OF MEETING:


6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There was no unfinished business for consideration.


7. NEW BUSINESS
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A. DECISIONS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There were no decisions for consideration.


B. MOBILE HOME APPLICATIONS - (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


#3-09MH -- Request of Elizabeth Tepinski, PO Box 232, Sycamore, IL for the
temporary use of a Mobile Home and Recreational Vehicle for dwelling purposes
during re-construction of fire-damaged Dwelling


Part of the N1/2 of the SE1/4 Section 2, White Rock Township 41N, R1E of
the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, IL, 5.10 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 18-02-400-002
Common Location: 2312 N. IL Hwy. 251, Rochelle, IL 61068


Mrs. Tepinski was present.  Mr. Reibel gave background information regarding this request.  The
original permit for the temporary placement of a mobile home for housing during construction of a
fire damaged dwelling was granted November 2007 subject to the following stipulations: 1) Mobile
home used for storage shall be placed out of sight on or before December 15, 2007; 2) No
inoperable/unlicensed vehicles shall be stored outside: 3) Installation of septic system shall be
completed and approved by the Ogle County Health Department on or before December 15, 2007;
4) Permit is valid for one (1) year and shall expire on November 15, 2008.  To date, these
conditions have not been met and this file has been forwarded to the States Attorney’s office for
prosecution.  Mrs. Tepinski is here today asking permission to utilized the mobile home and
recreational vehicle that are on the site for dwelling purposes.


Mrs. Tepinski stated I just got off work and have not slept for 26 hours so I apologize for being late. 
I am trying to rectify the situation.  The fire has been a traumatic experience.  I am the only one that
supports the family of five children who I have custody of.  Their parents are having a hard time in
their marriage and the well being of the family is in jeopardy.  We are doing the best we can.  I want
to rebuild and satisfy the requirements of Ogle County.  My grandchildren live in the mobile home
and do not have room to move or hot water.   I am awaiting an insurance settlement for a car
accident that I was in which made me unable to work for eight months, delaying any work that I
could also do to the property.  I don’t know how soon this money will be coming.  We have been
cleaning up the cars, they are not sitting outside.  My son does have to pull some out to get to one
he is going to work on.  It is a slow process.  


Mr. Boes asked did you own the property when it caught on fire?  Mrs. Tepinski answered my son
and his friend were purchasing the property, but they lost their business and could not continue
making payments on the property, so I took over.  At the time of the fire, it had been on contract for
a few months and I was making the payments & taxes, etc.  I am in process of getting a mortgage,
but because of the car accident and me being out of work for eight months, the bank is telling me
that we need more time to show that I am working before this can be done.  Mr. Barnes asked
where do you live now?  Mrs. Tepinski answered I live at work.   I have not had a day off since April. 
Mr. Barnes asked where do the children live?  Mrs. Tepinski answered in the mobile home that is
on the property.  


Mr. Barnes stated am I to understand that they did not come in compliance with the conditions
required in their first request from 2007?  Mr. Reibel answered yes.   They were to store all the
vehicles and related parts inside the building, put the other RV in a building and install a septic
system to serve the mobile home.   This has not been done.  There are quite a few cars, possibly
20 to 30 cars with parts and related materials still open to the view.  Mrs. Tepinski stated the cars
have been moved to a location that can not be seen from the road.  


Mr. Messer made a motion that we can take no action on this request since it is already with the
States Attorney with a hearing pending.  We need to see what the Judge declares as a solution.


Mr. Hopkins asked how old are the grandkids?  Who looks after them while you are at work?  Mrs.
Tepinski answered the oldest grandchild just graduated from Kings grade school with awards.  Mr.
Reibel stated her son, Art, and his wife live in the mobile home with the children.  Mrs. Tepinski
lives in the RV.  Mrs. Tepinski stated my belongings are in the RV but I do not live there.  I am at
work all the time.  Mr. Hopkins asked does your son work?  Mrs. Tepinski answered no.  He is
having a hard time.  Also, the septic is partially in but I did not have the money to pay to have it
finished.  Mr. Hopkins asked did you receive any insurance money?  Mrs. Tepinski answered I was
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told that I did not need to have insurance since the person I was purchasing the property from on
contract had insurance, and if I did, it would not be valid since I do not yet own the property.  I
realize that I was told wrong and should have gotten renters insurance for my personal property. 
The property owner negotiated with the insurance company and applied the settlement towards the
purchase contract.  


Mr. Hopkins stated I agree with Mr. Messer.  We need to wait to see what happens with the State’s
Attorney.  Mr. Reibel stated the hearing date is set for August.  This is a civil suit seeking
compliance.  If the Committee approves the RV then they would be in compliance with that part of
the suit.  Mr. Barnes stated there are several things that need to be done to come into compliance. 
Mr. Reibel answered there are two matters: the junk cars and the mobile home and RV being used
without permits.  If she gets in compliance with the mobile home and RV, that portion of the suit will
be dropped.  


Mr. Barnes asked if there are 20 to 30 cars there, are they running a junk yard?  Mrs. Tepinski
answered my son ran an autobody business.  The cars are his and he is working on them when he
can afford to.  Mr. Barnes stated he can junk them out.  Mrs. Tepinski stated scrapping them out
would only get $100 per car, but if they are fixed up, they could get a lot more.  Mr. Barnes stated if
you son is not working, then he has plenty of time to be taking care of this.  Mr. Boes stated we
need to get specific dates from you for when you will be in compliance with the conditions originally
given.  Mrs. Tepinski stated it is difficult to be specific as I am waiting for money and such.  Mr.
Hopkins stated the consensus is that there has to be some action done, especially regarding the
cars.


Ms. Sherry Mensching was present.  She stated that I am neighbor that lives near this property and
I drive by this property two times a day.  She passed out a letter to the Committee members for
review.  The letter stated that for the past two years she has watched this beautiful homestead turn
into an eyesore with the collection of junk cars,  trailers and a berm made from unclean fill.  These
people have been given ample opportunity to rebuild the burned house and they have done
nothing.  I believe they have no intention of doing so and are simply circumventing and abusing the
county laws.  


Mrs. Harriet Goeken, an adjoining property owner, was present.  She stated I have a letter signed
by the surrounding neighbors who have objections and concerns about this property.  The letter
was given to Chairman Hopkins.  Mrs. Goeken stated this place used to be a beautiful farmstead
and it has gone completely down hill.  When they moved in, they put up a chain that prevents us
from getting to our farm property.  We are getting nowhere.  


Mrs. Tepinski stated I strongly object.  This is not being done intentionally.  The berm is being taken
care of and I have some beautiful trees to put on the line.  The cars are not outside.  If they are, it is
only occasionally.   We can have one car for sale on the property.  If doesn’t sell, it sits there.   That
is not breaking the law.  As far as Mrs. Goeken is concerned, we started a feud the first day we
moved in regarding the easement.  The farmer wanted to use the drive into the property for a
turnaround for farm equipment.  We put up a chain for the protection of the children and to show
that we do not want people driving onto our property.


Mr. Barnes asked is the burnt house still standing?  Mrs. Tepinski answered yes.  Mr. Barnes asked
when was the fire?  Mrs. Tepinski answered March 15, 2007.  Mr. Barnes asked where does the
guy that you are buying this property from live?  Mrs. Tepinksi answered St. Charles.


Mr. Hopkins asked can we postpone a decision for 30 days to see if they take some action.  I
understand you have had some unfortunately circumstances, but you have to help yourself.   Your
son is not working and he will have to make a sacrifice regarding getting rid of the vehicles.  And I
know that this can be done in a 30 day period;


Mrs. Tepinksi stated I bought a tractor to take care of the berm. Mr. Barnes asked what was the
berm put in for?  Mr. Tepinski answered to help with the snow.  We were getting snowed in.  


Mr. Barnes asked whose name are the complaints being sent to?  Mr. Reibel answered Mrs.
Tepinski, her son Art and the property owner, Peter Vasilakos.  There are health code issues
regarding running water and the septic system.  Mr. Messer stated they are living in a trailer without
a septic.  Mrs. Tepinski stated we have a tank now but there is no field installed.  Mr. Reible asked
what size is the tank?  Do you have it pumped?  Mrs. Tepinski answered it is 1500 gallon tank.  Mr.
Reibel stated it should be pumped frequently with eight people using it. 
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Ms. Mensching stated when we got our permit to build, we were allowed to have a temporary trailer
on site.  It was a new trailer, very nice, but it was very hard to get rid of once the house was built. 
Getting rid of these trailers is not going to be easy.


Mr. Reibel stated one thing that is not clear is why there has been no movement towards re-building
and making these necessary improvements, since the insurance issue has been settled.  Mrs.
Tepinski stated I do not enough money at this time.  I am waiting for money from the car accident.


Mr. Williams stated in order to make things right, she has to come into compliance This is a pretty
generous Committee and we sympathize with you but we were pretty explicate with the conditions
placed on your request from two years ago.  You need to show action and get things cleaned up in
30 days.  If son is not working, he can make a good faith effort to do these things and work on
becoming a better neighbor.  Mr. Barnes stated it has been two years and nothing has been
completed.  That is way to long.  And with the son not working, I can not see why they are not in
compliance.  Mr. Boes stated we are hearing excuses but seeing no action.  All the junk could be
gone and the house leveled by next week.  Mr. Tepinski stated this takes money. Mrs. Harriet
Goeken stated the Tepinski’s are using the kids for everything they do or don’t do.  You should take
a field trip out there to see exactly what is going on.


Mr. Messer stated we should make no decision on this request until a Judge has decided the action
to take.  Mr. Hopkins asked do we have a second to this motion?   The motion failed due to lack of
a second.


Mr. Barnes made a motion to deny this request.  Two years has been plenty of time and nothing
has been done.  We all have gone through hard times but enough is enough.  Seconded by Mr.
Williams.  Mr. Hopkins asked for a roll call vote, the vote being as follows: Heuer - yes,  Messer -
yes, Boes - yes, Barnes - yes, Hopkins - yes, Diehl - yes, Williams - yes.   The motion carried by a
roll call vote of 7-0.


8. SUBDIVISION PLATS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There were no subdivision plats for consideration.


9. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT, AND
ACTION


Monthly bills of the Planning & Zoning Department were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $1,339.95 .  Mrs. Boes  made a motion to approve the
payment of the bills in the amount of $1,339.95; seconded by Mr. Barnes.  The motion
carried by a voice vote.


10. REFERRAL OF NEW PETITIONS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR PUBLIC
HEARING


#3-09 AMENDMENT -- Edward & Karen Giese, 1220 S. Gale Rd., Oregon, IL for an
Amendment to the Zoning District to rezone from AG-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Rural
Residence District on property described as follows and owned by the petitioners:


Part of the NE1/4 Section 7 Oregon-Nashua Township 23N, R10E of the 4th P.M.,
Ogle County, IL, 4.28 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 16-07-200-023  
Common Location: 1220 S. Gale Rd.
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#7-09 VARIATION -- Fasco Holding, Inc., %Richard Zimmerman, PO Box 170, Mendota,
IL and ADM Grain Co., %Jeff Mauck, PO Box 350, Mendota, IL for a Variation to allow a
grain bin to be constructed 43'4" from the right-of-way line of E. IL Rte. 38 in lieu of 80' as
required pursuant to the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance on property described
as follows, owned by Fasco Holding, Inc. and being leased by ADM Grain Co. :


Part of the SW1/4 of the SE1/4 Section 14 Dement Township 40N, R2E of the 3rd
P.M., Ogle County, IL, 9.60 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 25-14-400-007  
Common Location: 19560 E. IL Rte. 38


Mrs. Heuer made a motion to refer the above new requests to the Zoning Board of Appeals
for public hearing; seconded by Mr. Messer.  The motion carried by a voice vote.


11. OTHER BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


Mr. Reibel stated I am expecting to receive a Special Use Permit petition from Navitas in
August for a wind farm project.  ZBA hearings would likely begin in September.  This project
is in the Byron/Leaf River/Seward area involving Stephenson, Winnebago and Ogle
Counties. There is also another request in the works for a smaller site on the Gensler
property north of IL Route 64 and west of IL Route 251.  Mrs. Betty Goecken asked if the
Navitas project is the same location as the Baileyville wind farm request?  Mr. Reibel
answered no, this is a new project that is east of the Baileyville wind farm project area.


12. PUBLIC COMMENT


There was no public comment.


13. ADJOURN


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee
of the Ogle County Board adjourned at 2:04 P.M.  The next meeting of the Supervisor of
Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee is scheduled for July 15, 2009 at 1:00 P.M.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Reibel
Planning & Zoning Administrator








 
Blackhawk Waterways Convention & Visitor’s Bureau 


Promoting Tourism in Carroll, Lee, Ogle and Whiteside Counties 
Diane Bausman, Executive Director  


Report for Month of May 2009 
 
Meetings Attended: 
• May 4-6 – Illinois Council of Convention & Visitor’s Bureaus Quarterly meetings in Peoria 
• May 11th – Dixon Tourism meeting 
• May 12th – Carroll County Hotel/Motel meeting 
• May 13th – Savanna Hotel/Motel meeting 
• May 14th – Rock Falls Tourism meeting 
• May 18th – Strategic Opportunity Roundtable meeting on Tourism as a component of the Riverlands Economic Advantage 


Partnership Project between NW Illinois, SE Wisconsin & NE Iowa. 
• May 26th – BWCVB board meeting 
• May 27th – Rochelle Tourism meeting 
• May 27th – MVPA convoy planning meeting 
 
bwcvb.com Web Site Update: 
• Visits to the site were up 77.97% for the month of May and we’ve had 3,369 absolute unique visitors who viewed an average 


of 4.32 pages per visit.  Of these unique visitors 85.63% were new visitors to the site.   
• Our spring Google Adwords campaign generated 1,210 unique visitors to the site during May of which 92.89% were new 


visitors.  These visitors viewed 4.38 pages per visit and spend an average of 3.32 minutes on the site. 
• Our Blackhawk Chocolate Trail website www.thechocolatetrail.com launched May 22nd and we’ve already rec’d several 


requests for information.  Please check it out.   
 
Bulk Mailing Update: 


• During the month of May we sent out 332 packets of information.  
  


Public Relations: 
• The BWCVB Annual Dinner has been set for August 20th and will be held in Savanna at Poopy’s Pub & Grub.  Themed, 


Sturgis in Savanna - BWCVB Biker Bash, this will be a fun evening to network with friends in the tourism business – be 
sure to mark the date on your calendar – the invitations will be going out in mid-July.  


• Our website e-newsletter went out the 1st week in May to the 924 people who have signed up to receive it. 
• My June tourism partner e-newsletter went out May 27th.    
• WCCI radio show on May 18th.   
• Attended the DCEO award presentation at Bushel Basket Candle Company in Sterling on May 28th. 
 
Updates and Information:  
• The IBOT “Road Show” will be held June 8-11.  This is the annual series of press conferences and events to share tourism 


industry news, including the 2008 economic impact numbers, highlight the significant economic and social impact of Illinois’ 
travel and tourism industry, and reflect on upcoming tourism initiatives as they play into the current economic climate. 
Themed “There’s a Getaway for That,” the presentation will emphasize the state’s assets and ability to provide travelers with 
an Illinois getaway that is customized to fit their needs.  The closest one to be held in our area will be on Wednesday, June 
10, 3:30 p.m at the John Deere Harvester Works, in East Moline.    


 
Advertising Update: 
• During May we received 183 targeted requests for information from our ad on travelguidesfree.com  
• We received 94 requests for information from the 2009 Illinois Travel Guide. 
• We have received 399 requests for information from the 2009 edition of Midwest Living’s Best of the Midwest 
• We have an ad in the 2009 SVN Voyager that is distributed throughout our area and the Chicago suburban area.   
• We launched an ad on the WGNTV.com Cruisin’ Illinois webpage on 4/23/09 and as of the end of May we have received 


174 unique visits to our website directly from this ad.  Those people viewed an average of 6.48 pages and spent 8.27 minutes 
on the site.  Since the ads started running on April 30th we’ve rec’d 44 requests for information from phone calls or the 
website where people listed TV as where they heard about us.  


 
We appreciate the support we receive from you and if you would like me to give a brief presentation at your county board 
meeting on how Blackhawk Waterways CVB promotes tourism in Carroll, Lee, Ogle and Whiteside Counties, call me at 800-678-
2108 or contact me via e-mail at dbausman@bwcvb.com  
 


Blackhawk Waterways CVB Mission Statement 
To increase the economic impact to the four counties represented through promotions,  


advertising and providing information to potential visitors. 
 



http://www.thechocolatetrail.com/

mailto:dbausman@bwcvb.com
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STATE OF ILLINOIS   )
                    )SS
COUNTY OF OGLE      )


In the Matter of the Petition
              of
William D. and Dawn M. Schumaker,
Mt. Morris Township


Ogle County, Illinois


               Testimony of Witnesses
               Produced, Sworn and
               Examined on this 28th day
               of May A.D. 2009
               before the Ogle County
               Zoning Board of Appeals


Present:
Maurice Bronkema
Randall Anderson
John Finfrock
Jason Sword
Bruce McKinney, Chairman
Michael Reibel, Zoning Administrator
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Next order of business.
2           MR. REIBEL:  Next order of business is to
3      consider the request filed April 28th, 2009 of
4      William D. and Dawn M. Schumaker, 6073 Townline
5      Road, Leaf River, Illinois for Variation to
6      allow the construction of an additional
7      accessory building on a site that currently
8      exceeds the maximum allowable accessory building
9      area pursuant to Section 6.06 (D) of the Ogle


10      County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance on property
11      described as follows and owned by the
12      Petitioners:
13           Part E1/2 G.L.2 of the NE1/4 Fractional


          Section 4 and part W1/2 G.L. 2 NW 1/4
14           Fractional Section 3 Mt. Morris Township


          24N, R9E or the 4th P.M., Ogle County, IL,
15           7.81 acres, more or less.


          Property Identification Number:
16           08-04-200-004.


          Common Location:  6073 Townline Road.
17
18           For the record, a sign was posted along
19      the frontage of the premises indicating that a
20      zoning hearing is to be held.  All adjoining
21      property owners to the petition have been
22      notified by certified mail of the hearing this
23      evening and the specifics of the petition, and a
24      legal notice was published in the Monday, May


Page 2


1                       INDEX
2
3     Witness                             Examination
4 William Schumaker. . . . . . . . . . . .      5
5
6
7
8
9


10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18 End . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    22
19
20
21
22
23
24


Page 4


1      4th edition of the Ogle County Life again
2      notifying the public of the hearing this evening
3      and the specifics of the petition.
4           Under the Staff Report, a copy of which is
5      on file and the Board Members have received, I
6      will point out under general information, the
7      site is 7.81 acres.  Existing land use, the site
8      is zoned AG-1 and is in non-farm residential
9      use.  It's a former farmstead with farm


10      buildings.  The surrounding area is in
11      agricultural use and zoned AG-1 Agricultural
12      District.  Zoning history, no previous zoning
13      history for this site.
14           Special information, public utilities,
15      none.  Transportation, West Townline Road is a
16      seal coat surfaced, Mt. Morris Township
17      maintained road.  Physical characteristics, the
18      site is in an area of gently rolling terrain.
19      The site is on a side slope that transitions to
20      a stream bottom, with slopes ranging from 6 to
21      12 percent in the eastern portions of the site,
22      to zero to 2 percent in the western portions of
23      the site.  The site contains a former farm
24      dwelling, three existing accessory buildings and
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1      a detached garage under construction that is the
2      subject of the petition for variation.
3           That's all I have.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Going to a public hearing,
5      does someone want to make a motion?
6           MR. FINFROCK:  So moved.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there a second?
8           MR. BRONKEMA:  Second.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Moved and seconded to go


10      into a pubic hearing.  All those in favor
11      signify by saying aye.
12                    (All those simultaneously
13                     responded.)
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say no.
15           Motion passed.  We're in a public hearing.
16           Mr. Schumaker, do you want to --
17           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Sure.
18                  WILLIAM SCHUMAKER,
19      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Give her your name and
21      address.
22           MR. SCHUMAKER:  William Schumaker,
23      S-C-H-U-M-A-K-E-R, 6073 Townline Road, Leaf
24      River, Illinois.
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1      enough acreage to go along with the size of the
2      buildings that we're using here.  So at this
3      time there's no additional land for sale near --
4      around us or -- or available at a reasonable
5      price.
6           So one of the things I kind of wanted to
7      point out with this picture is this little
8      building here, it doesn't exist anymore and it
9      was there when they sold off the buildings from


10      the farm about 25 years ago.  So this -- if we
11      substituted the number of square feet here for
12      this detached garage, we pretty much have the
13      same amount of square footage that existed on
14      this property when they split it off from the
15      160 or so acres that it originally was.
16           Our -- our garage is intended to be a
17      safe, near to the house, everyday area to park
18      our transportation vehicles.  The garage would
19      be centralized between the house and the barn,
20      so it's not going to -- the outline, the
21      building's set as it is now won't really be
22      changed because this new building will be stuck
23      down inside between the existing ones.  This
24      will not affect -- or detrimentally affect any
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Tell us about your
2      petition.
3           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Well, we -- my wife and I
4      are requesting an opportunity to erect a
5      detached garage on this property.  And that's a
6      picture from the north looking southeast and
7      kind of down, it's an aerial view.  I brought
8      that to kind of show the lay of the buildings.
9      These buildings are a little bit -- as the


10      description of the property goes, a little bit
11      downhill.  So when we bought this place we had
12      figured that we could park in any number of
13      these units, but because of the slope and the
14      winter weather and storms it's become kind of
15      hazardous to try to traverse that hundred feet
16      or so between the house and the existing
17      buildings.  So we're here trying to seek a
18      reasonable resolution to violation of 6.06 of
19      the Zoning Code.
20           The physical -- particular physical issue
21      we're having with this project is the size of
22      the land being the acreage is 7.81 acres, and
23      using the math to calculate how many accessory
24      building square feet you can have we don't have


Page 8


1      of the adjacent property owners since most of it
2      is farmland anyway and their view won't be
3      obstructed because I'm not coming out in this
4      area anyway and the air and the light won't be
5      obviously affecting any changing -- any changes
6      in that, won't be affecting any of our
7      neighbors.
8           So my wife and I are requesting a variance
9      to accommodate the construction of another


10      building.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Was this small building --
12      you said it's already demolished?
13           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Yeah, this grain bin was
14      removed maybe 10 or 15 years ago.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  So that building wasn't in
16      the configuration?
17           MR. SCHUMAKER:  No, it's not in the
18      calculation that we came up with.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  My understand is you're
20      already over the limit --
21           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Right.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  -- without the garage?
23           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Right.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  And without that small
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1      building?
2           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Right.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there any other
4      buildings on your property that is not being
5      used that can be taken down to kind of help get
6      this back into --
7           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Well, unfortunately the
8      reason we bought this was I had recently sold a
9      farm up in Wisconsin and I had several pieces of


10      farm equipment that I needed to store someplace,
11      so it was a readymade conversion from having
12      that land up there.  I would have ideally liked
13      to have more land but that wasn't what was
14      available at the time.  And I have a camper and
15      a boat and firewood, it's nice to keep that
16      stuff stored someplace inside so it's not
17      exposed to the weather.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you do any farming
19      around here?
20           MR. SCHUMAKER:  I don't do any farming
21      presently, but my desire is that I could get
22      some more farmland and substitute what I had up
23      in Wisconsin for down here.
24           MR. SWORD:  How long have you lived there?
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1      of the peak.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  What about's the height of
3      your house?
4           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Oh, it's a two-story so
5      it's, I'm guessing 28, 30 feet.  It's got a
6      pretty steep -- this is a picture of -- or it's
7      kind of an image of what the garage would look
8      like finished.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  And you said the height of


10      the garage at the peak would be approximately --
11           MR. SCHUMAKER:  17 feet.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  17.  My concern is that the
13      garage would be taller or as tall as the house
14      and therefore it would be out of proportion.
15           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Yeah, it's actually -- the
16      barn is close to 30 feet and the house is maybe
17      28 feet, so it's actually lower than the house.
18      They all have the same pitch of the roof, so
19      whatever the number stories is you have got that
20      roof line even on top of that more.  So the
21      two-story buildings like this barn or the house
22      obviously are going to be taller than the
23      garage.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  You're not planning on
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1           MR. SCHUMAKER:  13 years.
2           MR. BRONKEMA:  The new building you got
3      there, you want to put a garage in between that?
4           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Yeah, it's kind of --
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Well, you already have got
6      the cart before the horse, you have already got
7      the garage almost completely built.
8           MR. SCHUMAKER:  That is true.
9           MR. SWORD:  Did you have a contractor


10      build it?
11           MR. SCHUMAKER:  No.
12           MR. SWORD:  So you built it yourself?
13           MR. SCHUMAKER:  (Nods head.)
14           MR. SWORD:  And you didn't think you had
15      to have a permit?
16           MR. SCHUMAKER:  For some reason, I don't
17      know where I got this idea, but I thought if you
18      had an old farm set of buildings you could build
19      an accessory building without having a permit,
20      so that's obviously an error.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  What is the height, width
22      and length of this new garage?
23           MR. SCHUMAKER:  It's 28 feet deep, 38 feet
24      wide, 10 feet at the eave and 17 feet at the top
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1      selling this property soon where this garage
2      would help bring a better value to your
3      property, are you?
4           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Nope, because I -- we
5      really like that place.  We have done a lot of
6      work on it.  I have replaced -- every single
7      roof here has been replaced and I have no
8      intention of doing all that work and then
9      leaving right away.


10           MR. BRONKEMA:  That outbuilding there, is
11      that on the other property?
12           MR. SCHUMAKER:  This one here, yeah.
13      There's a fence.  When they split off the 160
14      they put a fence like right 2 feet from the edge
15      of the building there, so that's not on mine.
16           MR. BRONKEMA:  I see there's a fence in
17      there.  I just figured that wasn't on yours.
18           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Yeah.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there any other
20      questions right now?
21           Do you have anything else?
22           MR. SCHUMAKER:  (Shakes head.)
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Nobody's filed a
24      letter of appearance?
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1           MR. REIBEL:  No.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  At this time is there
3      anybody here that wishes to either testify for
4      or against the petition?  Seeing none, need to
5      go back into open session.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
7           MR. SWORD:  Second.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Been moved and seconded to
9      go back into open session.  All those in favor


10      signify by saying aye.
11                    (All those simultaneously
12                     responded.)
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say no.
14           Motion passed.  Back into open session.
15      Let's go through our finding of facts.
16           MR. REIBEL:  In determining whether the
17      strict application of the Zoning Ordinance
18      creates impractical difficulties for or imposes
19      a particular hardship on an application --
20      applicant for a variation, the Board shall
21      consider the extent to which the following facts
22      have been established by the evidence:  A) The
23      particular physical surroundings, shape or
24      topographical condition of the specific property
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1                    (All those simultaneously
2                     agreed.)
3           MR. REIBEL:  B) The conditions upon which
4      the petition for a variation are based are
5      unique and would not be applicable generally to
6      other property within the same zoning
7      classification.
8           MR. BRONKEMA:  The conditions upon which
9      the petition for the variation are based are


10      unique and are not applicable generally to other
11      properties in the AG-1 District due to the site
12      location in an agriculture area, the presence
13      and origin -- original large buildings and
14      absence of a garage designed to serve the house,
15      and it's nice to have a big barn to put stuff in
16      but not very convenient for your own car and
17      your house, so I feel that standard's met.
18                    (All those simultaneously
19                     agreed.)
20           MR. REIBEL:  C) The purpose of the
21      variation is not based exclusively on a desire
22      to obtain a higher financial return on the
23      property.
24           MR. SWORD:  Evidence indicates that the
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1      involved would result in a particular hardship
2      upon the owner as distinguished from a mere
3      inconvenience if the strict letter of the
4      regulations were carried out.
5           MR. ANDERSON:  The site is located in a
6      predominantly agriculture area, farmland adjoins
7      the site.  All the buildings on the site with
8      the exception of the 12 by 18 garden shed are
9      original farm buildings and there is no garage


10      to serve the house.  These factors result in a
11      particular hardship as opposed to just a mere
12      inconvenience if the strict letter of the
13      regulation were carried out.  Other than
14      obviously the misunderstanding I guess you could
15      say of not getting the building permit and the
16      understanding a little more of that before we
17      started this, I guess I find that standard's
18      met.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  I agree.  Mr. Schumaker's
20      testimony sounds like most of the buildings are
21      being used for storage and future use.
22      Therefore, it would be a hardship if he had to
23      tear something down just to get within the
24      qualifications.
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1      purpose of the variation is not based
2      exclusively on a desire to obtain a higher
3      financial return on the property but rather to
4      provide a garage for the occupants of the
5      dwelling.  I feel that standard's met.
6                    (All those simultaneously
7                     agreed.)
8           MR. REIBEL:  D) The alleged difficulty or
9      hardship has not been created by any person


10      presently having an interest in the property.
11           MR. FINFROCK:  The alleged difficulty or
12      hardship has not been created by Mr. and
13      Mrs. Schumaker, as the existing farm buildings
14      onsite are original to the site, would have
15      existed when they acquired the property and are
16      in reasonably good condition.  I think the
17      standard's been met.
18                    (All those simultaneously
19                     agreed.)
20           MR. REIBEL:  E) The granting of the
21      variation will not be materially detrimental to
22      the public welfare or injurious to other
23      property or improvements in the neighborhood in
24      which the property is located.
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1           MR. SWORD:  No evidence has been submitted
2      that would indicate the granting of the
3      variation will in any way be materially
4      detrimental to the public welfare, injurious to
5      other property or improvements in the
6      neighborhood in which the property is located.
7      I feel that standard's met.
8                    (All those simultaneously
9                     agreed.)


10           MR. REIBEL:  F) The proposed variation
11      will not impair an adequate supply of light and
12      air to adjacent property or substantially
13      increase the congestion in the public streets or
14      increase the danger of fire or endanger the
15      public safety or substantially diminish or
16      impair property values within the neighborhood.
17           MR. BRONKEMA:  No evidence has been
18      submitted that would indicate that the variance
19      will impair an adequate supply of light or air
20      to adjacent property or substantially increase
21      the congestion in the public streets or increase
22      the danger of fire or endanger the public safety
23      or substantially diminish or impair property
24      values within the neighborhood.  And the
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1      the essential character of the locality, as the
2      site is located in an agriculture area.
3      Standard is met.
4                    (All those simultaneously
5                     agreed.)
6           MR. REIBEL:  In addition to the required
7      findings of facts pursuant to Section 6.06 (D)1
8      of the Zoning Ordinance, the Board is also
9      required to find that the area of all accessory


10      buildings will be compatible with the
11      neighborhood in design, location and size and
12      there is proportionality between the size of the
13      principal building, parcel, street frontage and
14      the size of the accessory structures.
15           MR. FINFROCK:  The Board finds the area of
16      the accessory buildings will be compatible with
17      the neighborhood, design, location, size, and
18      the proposed accessory building is proportional
19      to the existing dwelling partial size from what
20      I have seen.  Standard met.
21                    (All those simultaneously
22                     agreed.)
23           MR. BRONKEMA:  I feel it's set back in
24      there, and I bet a lot of people won't even know
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1      building's set back off the road, pretty well
2      hidden with all the rest of the buildings, so
3      feel that standard's met.
4                    (All those simultaneously
5                     agreed.)
6           MR. REIBEL:  The Zoning Board of Appeals
7      should not vary the regulations of this
8      ordinance unless it shall make findings based
9      upon the evidence present to it in each specific


10      case that:  A) The plight of the owner is due to
11      unique circumstances.
12           MR. BRONKEMA:  The circumstances are
13      unique due to the presence of a large original
14      farm building which he testified was really not
15      too handy for his -- to store his automobiles
16      other than machinery.  The site is -- and the
17      buildings are in reasonably good condition, so
18      the standard's met.
19                    (All those simultaneously
20                     agreed.)
21           MR. REIBEL:  B) The variation, if granted,
22      will not alter the essential character of the
23      locality.
24           MR. SWORD:  The variation will not alter
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1      the garage is there with the amount of frontage
2      or foliage he has got there, you have to look.
3      I had to drive in there.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Going through the finding
5      of facts we have found that all standards have
6      been met, so I will entertain a motion.
7           MR. ANDERSON:  I'll make a motion that we
8      approve the Variation No. 6-09 of William and
9      Dawn Schumaker to allow them to build a garage


10      next to the residence, finding that all the
11      facts are met.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there a second?
13           MR. FINFROCK:  Second.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Randy's moved, John
15      seconded to approve the Variation No. 6-09 for
16      William D. and Dawn M. Schumaker.  Roll call.
17           MR. REIBEL:  Bronkema?
18           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
19           MR. REIBEL:  Sword?
20           MR. SWORD:  Yes.
21           MR. REIBEL:  Finfrock?
22           MR. FINFROCK:  Yes.
23           MR. REIBEL:  Anderson?
24           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
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1           MR. REIBEL:  McKinney?
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
3                    (By voice vote five ayes.)
4           MR. REIBEL:  Five voted yes.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passed.
6           Come in and see Mr. Reibel tomorrow or
7      whenever and get your building permit.
8           MR. SCHUMAKER:  Thank you very much,
9      gentlemen.


10           MR. BRONKEMA:  You want to wait and I'll
11      tell you a little story after we get done here.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other order of
13      business?
14           MR. REIBEL:  No further business.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  This meeting is adjourned.
16                    (The hearing was concluded at
17                     7:52 p.m.)
18
19
20
21
22
23
24


Page 22


1           Now on this 28th day of May, A.D. 2009, I
2      do signify that the foregoing testimony was
3      given before the Ogle County Zoning Board of
4      Appeals.
5
6
7
8


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
9


10
11
12
13


               Michael Reibel,
14                Zoning Administrator
15
16
17
18


               Callie S. Fleming
19                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               Registered Professional Reporter
20                IL License No. 084-004489


               P.O. Box 381
21                Dixon, Illinois  61021
22
23
24
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Call this meeting to order.
2      Please stand for the Pledge of Allegiance.
3                    (The Pledge of Allegiance was
4                     cited.)
5           MR. McKINNEY:  You may be seated.  Roll
6      call, please.
7                    (Roll call was taken and all were
8                     present.)
9           MR. REIBEL:  Five present.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  We do have a quorum.
11           Verbatim transcripts serving as minutes
12      from the last meeting are on file and those will
13      not be read at this time.  I'll entertain a
14      motion to approve minutes of the last ZBA
15      meeting.
16           MR. ANDERSON:  I'll make a motion.
17           MR. BRONKEMA:  Second.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Randy's moved, Maury's
19      seconded.  Any questions on the minutes?
20           All those in favor signify by saying aye.
21                    (All those simultaneously
22                     responded.)
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say no.  Motion
24      passed.
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1           All the testimony will be taken under
2      oath.  Please come forward to testify and state
3      your name and address to the recording
4      secretary.  Please spell your last name.  When
5      testifying, please speak clearly and loud enough
6      to be heard.  This hearing is the only
7      opportunity to place testimony and evidence on
8      the record.  There will not be another
9      opportunity beyond tonight's hearing to submit


10      additional evidence or testimony for
11      consideration.  Please turn off all cell phones
12      and pagers.
13           The procedure on hearings will be -- that
14      will be followed tonight is as found in the ZBA
15      Rules of Procedures and the Citizens Guide to
16      the Zoning Board of Appeals, which are available
17      right here in front of Mr. Reibel.
18           If anyone has trouble hearing, please let
19      us know.  I want to welcome John Finfrock.  I
20      think this is your first meeting?
21           MR. FINFROCK:  Second.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Second, okay.
23           Mr. Reibel, the first order of business.
24           MR. REIBEL:  First order of business is to
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1      consider the request filed April 22nd, 2009 of
2      David and Lisa Shaw, 6021 North CL Myers Drive,
3      Byron, Illinois for a variation to allow an
4      above-ground pool and deck to be constructed 27
5      feet from the right-of-way line of North River
6      Road in lieu of 50 feet as required pursuant to
7      the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance on
8      property described as follows and owned by the
9      Petitioners:


10           Lot 2 River Oaks Subdivision, part of the
          W1/2 SE1/4 Section 2 Rockvale Township


11           24N, R10E of the 4th P.M., Ogle County,
          Illinois.


12           Property Identification Number:
          09-02-452-002.


13           Common Location:  6021 North CL Myers
          Drive.


14
15           Under the Staff Report, copy of which is
16      on file and the Board Members have received, I
17      will point out under general information that
18      the size of the parcel is 2.05 acres, more or
19      less.  Existing land use, site is zoned R-2
20      single-family residence district and is in
21      residential use.  Surrounding land use and
22      zoning, the site is located within a residential
23      area.  All surrounding land is zoned R-2
24      single-family residence district.  The site was
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1      comment, due to the proximity of the proposed
2      improvements to the right-of-way of River Road
3      this office strenuously objects to the issuance
4      of the requested variance.  The close proximity
5      of the improvements to the existing River Road
6      roadway could lead to unintentional damage by
7      required snow and ice removal operations.
8           Signed by Curtis D. Cook, P.E., County
9      Engineer.


10           And for the record, a sign was posted
11      along the frontage of the premises indicating
12      that a public hearing was to be held.  All
13      adjoining property owners to this petition have
14      been notified by certified mail of the hearing
15      this evening and the specifics of the petition,
16      and a legal notice was published in the Monday,
17      May 4th edition of the Ogle County Life
18      notifying the public of the hearing this evening
19      and the specifics of the petition.
20           That's all I have, Mr. Chairman.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Thank you.  This is
22      a public hearing, so I'll entertain a motion to
23      go into a public hearing.
24           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
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1      zoned R-2 in 1979 under Petition No. 2-79A.
2      River Oaks Subdivision was approved by the Ogle
3      County Board on January -- June 11th, 1979.  The
4      dwelling on-site was constructed in 1995 under
5      Zoning Certificate No. 169-9NA.  Applicable
6      regulations, the subdivision plat of River Oaks
7      Subdivision indicates a setback of 50 feet from
8      River Road and CL Myers Drive.
9           Special information, public utilities, the


10      site is served by public water from the City of
11      Byron.  Transportation, North River Road is a
12      hot mix surfaced Ogle County highway.  North CL
13      Myers Drive is a hot mix surfaced road under the
14      jurisdiction of Rockvale Township.  Physical
15      characteristics, the site is located in an
16      elevated stream terrace, with slopes ranging
17      from 2 to 5 percent on the site.  The site is
18      elevated approximately 6 to 8 feet above River
19      Road.
20           I have a letter on file from the Ogle
21      County Highway Department dated May 6, 2009
22      which states:
23           This office has completed its review of
24      the variation request and offers the following
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1           MR. SWORD:  I'll second.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Maury's moved, Jason
3      seconded to go into the public hearing.  All
4      those in favor signify by saying aye.
5                    (All those simultaneously
6                     responded.)
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say no.  Motion
8      passed.  We're in a public hearing.
9           Mrs. Shaw, if you want to come to the roll


10      pit, I guess.  Please raise your right hand.
11                      LISA SHAW,
12      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Give Callie your name and
14      address.
15           MS. SHAW:  Lisa Shaw, S-H-A-W, 6021 North
16      CL Myers Drive, Byron, Illinois.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Tell us about your
18      petition.
19           MS. SHAW:  Uhm, due to my own stupidity I
20      had a pool put up in October, I didn't realize I
21      had to have a permit for that pool.  I went to
22      the Zoning Board to get a permit for a deck for
23      the pool because I knew that it would be
24      cemented in the ground and be a permanent
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1      structure, and that's when I was told that I had
2      to have a permit for the pool and that's why I'm
3      here.
4           Uhm, where we have our pool set in our
5      yard at and the size of the deck that we would
6      like to put on there we would only be 7 feet
7      from our leech fields and we're more than
8      25 feet away from our neighbor's property --
9      that's the deck.  And the 50 feet off the county


10      road, we're only 27 from the edge of the pool,
11      uhm, but we do have almost a 10 foot -- 8, 10
12      foot drop-off that goes completely down, there's
13      really not a slope.
14           And with the shrubs and the trees and the
15      two fences, uhm, my concern would be if we were
16      level with that road then I guess I would
17      understand if there was an accident, because it
18      is a 55 mile an hour road that there would be a
19      problem with cars coming into the yard but we
20      are so high up and there's so many shrubs and
21      brush and two fence lines running in front of
22      the pool that I don't see how something like
23      that would happen.  We have lived there like
24      almost 15 years, 14 years.
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1           MS. SHAW:  No.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  A few questions.
3           MR. BRONKEMA:  I guess you can't come up
4      with another area for it, right?
5           MS. SHAW:  The largest area that we have
6      open, as you can see on that map, is our front
7      yard.  I don't really know how our neighbors
8      would feel about putting a pool in our front
9      yard.


10           MR. SWORD:  What about between the leech
11      field and the house, right in here?
12           MR. ANDERSON:  If this is drawn to scale.
13           MR. FINFROCK:  Here's your pool, here's
14      your leech field, here's your house.
15           MS. SHAW:  There's not enough room.
16           MR. ANDERSON:  Is this drawn to scale?
17           MR. REIBEL:  Yes.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Shaw explained to me
19      that the tanks for the septic is closer to the
20      house and then the runs go out to where it's
21      indicated on the map.
22           MR. BRONKEMA:  In the order they show.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Most of that area between
24      the house and where it shows leech field is
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Well, I think Mr. Cook --
2      Curtis Cook, his biggest concern is like
3      snowplowing, going down the road, you know, if
4      they can get going at 50 miles an hour they'll
5      toss the snow and ice -- could toss it up over
6      that hill and could damage your pool, that
7      that's his biggest concern.  I don't think it --
8      unless a car is really traveling could get up
9      there.


10           MS. SHAW:  That's what I --
11           MR. McKINNEY:  The biggest concern is
12      snow, ice, rocks being flung into the air by
13      snowplows or something.
14           MS. SHAW:  Well, I can understand that,
15      but also we have never had rocks in our yard at
16      that end or anything thrown up in our yard that
17      we have ever seen or noticed like when the plows
18      go by, it's always down in the ditch.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  There's always that one
20      time.
21           MS. SHAW:  I understand.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah.  You don't have to be
23      nervous, we're not going to bite.
24           Anything else right now?
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1      actually it's septic field.
2           MR. SWORD:  What about right east of the
3      house?
4           MS. SHAW:  That's all trees.  And this
5      part of our yard right here, this is all fenced
6      in up to that garage.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Which part are you pointing
8      to just so we can get it on the record?
9           MS. SHAW:  This coming from --


10           MR. McKINNEY:  You're talking about the
11      north side of the house?
12           MS. SHAW:  Yeah.  This is all fenced in,
13      you know, up to a couple feet away from there,
14      because it comes up to the corner of the house.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  So you're talking about
16      from the north side all the way to the west side
17      and around the chain link fence?
18           MS. SHAW:  Yeah, that's what we have,
19      chain link.  And that's our backyard, that's
20      where we utilize our space with our kids and
21      entertaining.  We don't ever walk in our front
22      yard I don't think except to mow it.
23           MR. ANDERSON:  If the Board agrees to
24      this, if there was any stipulations put in here,







(815) 453-2260
In Totidem Verbis, LLC (ITV)


4 (Pages 13 to 16)


Page 13


1      and the Board would have to agree to the
2      stipulations, that if it -- comes down to that
3      River Road was to be widened or something was
4      done and it was required by the County that you
5      move that pool --
6           MS. SHAW:  That we move the pool.
7           MR. ANDERSON:  -- you would have to move
8      the pool at your own expense and you would be
9      responsible for any damages to your own pool.


10           MS. SHAW:  I would agree with that, yes.
11           MR. ANDERSON:  Well, that would be up to
12      the Board if they'll accept those stipulations
13      too.
14           MR. BRONKEMA:  I really feel that the -- I
15      don't think there's any way the County would
16      ever get the snow up there.  I have pushed a lot
17      of snow, pushed a lot of snow, and it would take
18      an awful big machine to get it up on top of the
19      fence, that bank there.  I'm not saying it
20      couldn't be done.
21           MR. ANDERSON:  Mike, would you have any
22      problems with the verbiage being put in in
23      regards to the stipulation of if it's required
24      by Curtis to have it moved because of whatever
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1      always that one time.
2           MR. BRONKEMA:  Right.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  We're going to be going
4      through some finding of facts, so I'd like to
5      ask some question just so we get it on the
6      record -- your answers.
7           You're not planning -- because your
8      constructing this pool is not because you're
9      planning on selling the property here real soon


10      to gain a bigger return?
11           MS. SHAW:  Honestly I have two cousins
12      that work for brokers and 90 percent of homes do
13      not sell because they have pools.
14           MR. SWORD:  Yeah, all the liability.
15           MS. FARMER:  It's a liability.
16           MS. SHAW:  So I would not be going through
17      all this trouble just for resell.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  You and your husband built
19      this house in 1995?
20           MS. SHAW:  Yes.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  At that time were you
22      contemplating ever having a swimming pool?
23           MS. SHAW:  No.  And, you know, if we had
24      -- that's what we were talking about before with
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1      reason for River Road or that, that she would
2      have to move it at her own expense?
3           MR. REIBEL:  No, that's fine, and actually
4      we do have drafted a waiver of liability
5      document that I talked to Curtis about we have
6      used before that Mr. and Mrs. Shaw could be
7      required to sign and record that just says that
8      they can't hold the County responsible, liable
9      for any damages due to the operations of the


10      highway.  I don't think Curtis' concern is the
11      widening of the highway so much as just the
12      general operations maintenance.
13           MR. FINFROCK:  And you're willing to do
14      that?
15           MS. SHAW:  Yes.
16           MR. SWORD:  Does something like that
17      transfer if they sell the property?
18           MR. REIBEL:  That's why they have them
19      record it against the deed, and it does say it
20      applies to subsequent owners, etcetera.
21           MR. BRONKEMA:  It would take a lot of
22      pushing with a snowplow to get it up that yard.
23           MR. REIBEL:  I told Curtis that.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  But just in case, there's
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1      the leech fields and the septic being so close
2      that, you know, it just wasn't something you
3      think about if you have never had a house built
4      or had a pool built, because it is kind of silly
5      having our leech fields where they are at.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Just trying to determine if
7      the hardship is --
8           MS. SHAW:  I would like it closer to the
9      house by the deck that's off the patio doors,


10      that would be more convenient for me, but
11      because those fields are there --
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Right.  That's all the
13      questions I have.
14           Anybody else have any questions right now?
15           MR. ANDERSON:  No, she already answered
16      what I had.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  And you are willing -- you
18      and your husband would be willing to sign this
19      waiver of liability --
20           MS. SHAW:  Yes.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  -- if that is a requirement
22      of the Board if this passes?
23           MS. SHAW:  Yes.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  I believe we have
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1      a -- do you have anything else right now?
2           MS. SHAW:  No.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  We do have a letter on file
4      for -- who's the person?
5           MR. REIBEL:  Rosemary Farmer.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Rosemary Farmer to ask
7      questions.  She cannot testify at this time.
8      She'll have some questions, I believe, of you.
9           MS. FARMER:  Oh, I didn't really have


10      questions --
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Oh, okay.
12           MS. FARMER:  -- other than, you know -- I
13      really don't have questions for you.  We --
14      we're -- I'm her immediate neighbor, her only
15      immediate neighbor, and she's my only immediate
16      neighbor.  I think we have talked --
17           MR. McKINNEY:  I'm going to be asking
18      for --
19           MS. FARMER:  Okay.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  -- anybody to be sworn in
21      and testify as either opponent or -- either for
22      or against the petition, so we'll -- if you
23      don't have any questions on what they're doing
24      then we'll --
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Please come forward.
2                   ROSEMARY FARMER,
3      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Give her your name.
5           MS. FARMER:  Rosemary Farmer, F-A-R-M-E-R,
6      6001 North CL Myers Drive, Byron, Illinois.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  The floor is yours.
8           MS. FARMER:  Okay.  I did -- boy, oh boy,
9      that snow thing really threw me, that's pretty


10      bizarre, and I just want you guys to consider
11      that, which obviously you have.  I didn't expect
12      that one.  I did expect somebody saying
13      something about possibly if somebody went off
14      the road, you know, which if you physically come
15      out there and look -- I measured it today --
16      from the edge of River Road to where the hill,
17      the incline up to the property is 27 feet, okay.
18      Then you got another I guessed -- I measured but
19      then I guessed, because I'm short and I'm
20      looking up, and between 8 to 10 feet above the
21      street, okay.  I also drove down River Road, and
22      at the address 6773 you have got from the edge
23      of the road to a drop into the river, 27 feet.
24      At 6525 you have got 30 feet from the edge of
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1           MS. FARMER:  No, I just was kind of
2      wondering what these squiggly lines are.  What
3      are these?
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Squiggly lines.
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  Probably the leech fields.
6           MS. FARMER:  No, no, they run all over the
7      place.
8           MR. REIBEL:  Those are the contour lines,
9      the lines of topography or elevation.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  How high it is.
11           AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Yeah, that's the way the
12      topography map would show the land slopes.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  That's how water would
14      flow.
15           MS. FARMER:  Oh, okay.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have any other
17      questions?
18           MS. FARMER:  No.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  You can sit down
20      then.
21           At this time is there anybody here that
22      wishes to be sworn in and testify in favor of
23      the petition?
24           MS. FARMER:  Yes.
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1      the road to the drop into the river with nothing
2      stopping you.  At 6501 you have got 28 feet.
3      There were far closer -- when I say closer I
4      mean from the edge of the road to a big drop
5      into the river with nothing stopping you far,
6      far more dangerous, far, far more likely to
7      happen.  We have had more cars in the river than
8      we have up in somebody's lawn, okay.
9           I think as far as our property goes, like


10      I said, we are the only neighbor that Lisa has
11      touching her property and she's the only
12      neighbor I have at this time that touches my
13      property.
14           To have the pool in the front yard is not
15      the answer.  I think it's commendable -- Lisa
16      and I, the first time we talked in three years
17      was the other day.  She has her family, I do my
18      thing.  There's, you know, no problem or
19      anything, they're a nice quiet family, nice
20      quiet people and we mind our own business, other
21      than me being here I guess.
22           I'm kind of disappointed that the road
23      commissioner isn't here to hear those numbers,
24      because I have been thinking that for a long
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1      time.  We have got far more dangerous things
2      going on on that road than Lisa's pool.
3           I think it's commendable that a family
4      wants their children in their own backyard so
5      she knows where they're at.  The pool -- if you
6      saw how her house set, to put the pool off to
7      the side -- she's got a little guy, I don't know
8      how old he is.
9           MS. SHAW:  Five.


10           MS. FARMER:  But if she can't watch from
11      the kitchen window to see, you know, that
12      everything is okay in the pool -- you have got,
13      I would assume, a much better view putting that
14      pool where you want to put it or where it's at.
15      To be honest with you, I didn't even know they
16      had a pool.
17           You know, we -- we have no objection and,
18      like I said, we are their closest neighbor.  You
19      know, this is not the buddy plan, I'm not here
20      to -- you know, because we -- our paths go
21      different ways.  But I think it's -- I think
22      it's sad that, you know, it has to be drawn out
23      like this in such a dramatic way and, you know,
24      I was more -- I was figuring you guys were going
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1                    (All those simultaneously
2                     responded.)
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say no.
4           Motion passed.  Back in open session.
5           Let's go through our finding of facts.
6           MR. REIBEL:  In determining whether the
7      strict application of the Zoning Ordinance
8      creates impractical difficulties for or imposes
9      a particular hardship on an applicant for a


10      variation, the Board shall consider the extent
11      to which the following facts have been
12      established by the evidence:  A) The particular
13      physical surroundings, shape or topographical
14      condition of the specific property involved
15      would result in a particular hardship upon the
16      owner as distinguished from a mere inconvenience
17      if the strict letter of the regulations were
18      carried out.
19           MR. ANDERSON:  The location, orientation
20      of existing house along lots, River Road
21      frontage, septic system, landscaping and highway
22      right-of-way on two sides of the lot is such
23      that it is not possible for the Petitioner to
24      construct a swimming pool and deck as proposed
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1      to hit us with the safety thing, not snow,
2      that's bizarre.  I can see if you came down the
3      road with big blowers, you're talking a plow.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  They might come down the
5      road with big blowers next winter, who knows.
6           MS. FARMER:  I have never had any debris
7      in my yard from that, believe me, and we sit up
8      high too, so.
9           Anything can happen, but these numbers I


10      gave you are far more likely to happen.  That is
11      I think a far more dramatic, far more likely
12      disaster than Lisa putting her pool where she
13      wants it.  That's it, okay.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Thank you.
15           Is there anybody else here that wishes to
16      testify in favor?  Anybody here that wishes to
17      testify against the petition?
18           Seeing none, entertain a motion to go back
19      into open session.
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
21           MR. FINFROCK:  Second.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Been moved and seconded to
23      go back into open session.  All those in favor
24      signify by saying aye.
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1      that conforms to the required setback of
2      50 feet.  I really understand why you wouldn't
3      want to have a pool in your front yard, not
4      everyone wants to parade in front of your
5      neighbors in a swimsuit.
6           MS. SHAW:  My neighbors don't want to see
7      me in my swimsuit.
8           MR. ANDERSON:  I feel that standard's met.
9                    (All those simultaneously


10                     agreed.)
11           MR. REIBEL:  B) The conditions upon which
12      the petition for a variation are based are
13      unique and would not be applicable generally to
14      other property within the same zoning
15      classification.
16           MR. SWORD:  The conditions upon which the
17      petition for a variation are based are unique
18      and are not applicable generally to other
19      property within the R-2 single-family residence
20      district due to the existing house location and
21      orientation with the rear yard along the lots,
22      River Road frontage, the septic system location,
23      topography of the site with the lot being
24      approximately 6 to 8 foot above the elevation of
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1      River Road and highway right-of-way on two sides
2      of the lot.  I feel that standard is met.
3                    (All those simultaneously
4                     agreed.)
5           MR. REIBEL:  C) The purpose of the
6      variation is not based exclusively on a desire
7      to obtain a higher financial return on the
8      property.
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  The evidence indicates that


10      the purpose of the variation is not based
11      exclusively on the desire to obtain a higher
12      financial return on the property but rather to
13      provide a swimming pool for the occupants of the
14      dwelling, and she testified that it wasn't for a
15      higher property value.  So I feel that
16      standard's met.
17                    (All those simultaneously
18                     agreed.)
19           MR. REIBEL:  D) The alleged difficulty or
20      hardship has not been created by any person
21      presently having an interest in the property.
22           MR. FINFROCK:  The alleged difficulty or
23      hardship has not been created by Mr. and Mrs.
24      Shaw.  Even though Mr. and Mrs. Shaw constructed
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1      public safety or substantially diminish or
2      impair property values within that neighborhood.
3           MR. SWORD:  No evidence has been submitted
4      that would indicate that the variation will
5      impair an adequate supply of light and air to
6      adjacent property or substantially increase the
7      congestion in the public streets or increase the
8      danger of fire or endanger the public safety or
9      substantially diminish or impair property values


10      within the neighborhood.  That standard is met.
11                    (All those simultaneously
12                     agreed.)
13           MR. REIBEL:  The Zoning Board of Appeals
14      shall not vary the regulations of this ordinance
15      unless it should make findings in each specific
16      case that:  A) The plight of the owner is due to
17      unique circumstances.
18           MR. FINFROCK:  The circumstances are
19      unique due to the location, orientation of the
20      existing dwelling of the site, as well as the
21      location of the existing septic system and the
22      double frontage nature of the lot with the
23      right-of-way along the rear of the lot as well
24      as along the side of the lot.  I believe that
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1      the dwelling in 1995, it is unlikely that they
2      contemplated a swimming pool at the time the
3      house was constructed and the septic field
4      installed.  I believe that standard's met.
5                    (All those simultaneously
6                     agreed.)
7           MR. REIBEL:  E) The granting of the
8      variation will not be materially detrimental to
9      the public welfare or injurious to other


10      property or improvements in the neighborhood in
11      which the property is located.
12           MR. BRONKEMA:  No evidence has been
13      submitted that would indicate that the granting
14      of the variation will be materially detrimental
15      to the public welfare or injurious to the
16      property or improvements in the neighborhoods in
17      which the property is located.  Standard's met.
18                    (All those simultaneously
19                     agreed.)
20           MR. REIBEL:  F) The proposed variation
21      will not impair an adjacent supply of light and
22      air to adjacent property or substantially
23      increase the congestion in the public streets or
24      increase the danger of fire or endanger the
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1      standard's met.
2                    (All those simultaneously
3                     agreed.)
4           MR. REIBEL:  B) The variation if granted
5      will not alter the essential character of the
6      locality.
7           MR. BRONKEMA:  The variation will not
8      alter the essential character of the locality,
9      as there is an adequate buffer between the


10      proposed swimming pool and River Road due to the
11      difference in elevation and the lots on River
12      Road, plus they're also well concealed by brush
13      and trees that they have planted in that area.
14      I feel that standard's met.
15                    (All those simultaneously
16                     agreed.)
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Going through all the
18      standards, we have found that all standards have
19      been met.  With that, before we entertain a
20      motion do we want to require this waiver of
21      liability that Curtis Cook has asked us -- if we
22      do grant the petition he would like a little
23      protection for the Highway Department.
24           MR. FINFROCK:  My feeling is that we
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1      should, yes.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay, so in the motion you
3      may want to include that.  And I think Randy has
4      also stipulated that he would like to see
5      something in the motion about requirement that
6      the Shaws or the owner of the property at that
7      time would have to be required at their cost to
8      move the pool if River Road was to be widened, I
9      don't know if you still wanted that in the


10      motion or not.
11           MR. ANDERSON:  I don't think we need it
12      with that.
13           MR. REIBEL:  Just the waiver of liability
14      is sufficient?
15           MR. ANDERSON:  Yeah.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  So I will entertain a
17      motion.
18           MR. BRONKEMA:  I make a motion that we
19      grant the variation to David and Lisa Shaw at
20      6021 North CL Myers Drive, Byron for a variation
21      to allow the above-ground pool and deck to be
22      constructed 27 feet from the right-of-way in
23      lieu of the 50 feet with the signing of the
24      variations for the liability for the Highway
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
2                    (By voice vote five ayes.)
3           MR. REIBEL:  Five voted yes.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passed.
5           Come in and see Mr. Reibel tomorrow to get
6      the paperwork signed and filed with the County
7      and then you will be able to take care of
8      your -- if there's nothing else take care of
9      your permit so you can proceed.


10           MS. SHAW:  Thank you.
11           MR. SWORD:  And you can hope for warm
12      weather.
13           MR. BRONKEMA:  This is off the record.
14                    (A discussion was held off
15                     the record.)
16                    (The hearing was concluded at
17                     7:33 p.m.)
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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1      Department.
2           MR. REIBEL:  And recordation of that
3      document as well, include that as well?
4           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  And all standard were met.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  With all the standards
7      being met of the 05-09 variance.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Been moved to approve the
9      variation.  Is there a second?


10           MR. ANDERSON:  I'll second it.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Been moved and seconded to
12      approve No. 05-09 variation for David and Lisa
13      Shaw with the waiver of liability being signed
14      and filed with the County.
15           Roll call.
16           MR. REIBEL:  Sword?
17           MR. SWORD:  Yes.
18           MR. REIBEL:  Finfrock?
19           MR. FINFROCK:  Yes.
20           MR. REIBEL:  Anderson?
21           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
22           MR. REIBEL:  Bronkema?
23           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
24           MR. REIBEL:  McKinney?
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1           Now on this 28th day of May, A.D. 2009, I
2      do signify that the foregoing testimony was
3      given before the Ogle County Zoning Board of
4      Appeals.
5
6
7
8


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
9


10
11
12
13


               Michael Reibel,
14                Zoning Administrator
15
16
17
18


               Callie S. Fleming
19                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               Registered Professional Reporter
20                IL License No. 084-004489


               P.O. Box 381
21                Dixon, Illinois  61021
22
23
24





		Schumaker - Mt Morris Twp

		Shaw - Rockvale Twp











General Fund Budget Performance
Ogle County


Fiscal Year To Date: 5/31/2009


Friday, June 05, 2009Pages 1 of 16user: John Coffman


3999 Other Revenue $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $0.00


3605 HAVA Grant $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,459.75 $27,540.25 8% $0.00


3542 County Licenses $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $25.00 $0.00 $2,100.00 $900.00 70% $2,275.00


3530 Liquor License $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $16,000.00 $0.00 $19,875.00 $5,125.00 80% $22,375.00


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder 
totals:


$63,000.00 $0.00 $63,000.00 $16,025.00 $0.00 $24,434.75 $38,565.25 39% $24,650.00


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder


3999 Other Revenue $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $50.00 $0.00 $4,010.00 $5,990.00 40% $5,912.06


3900 Interfund Transfer In $1,900,000.00 $0.00 $1,900,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500,000.00 $400,000.00 79% $1,675,000.00


3380 Restitution $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0% $850.00


3372 Administrative Court Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3330 Cable TV Franchise Fees $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $6,330.85 $0.00 $57,059.47 ($7,059.47) 114% $44,672.69


3160 Inheritance Tax Reimbursement $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,842.58 $2,157.42 86% $8,111.88


3127 PILOT  Payment $135,000.00 $0.00 $135,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $135,000.00 0% $0.00


3126 Mobile Home Tax $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 0% $0.00


3125 Property Tax $4,035,500.00 $0.00 $4,035,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,035,500.00 0% $0.00


3120-20 Sales Tax - 1% Portion $450,000.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $29,326.22 $0.00 $259,126.00 $190,874.00 58% $230,035.37


3120-10 Sales Tax - $.0025 Portion $875,000.00 $0.00 $875,000.00 $49,403.83 $0.00 $388,642.98 $486,357.02 44% $432,881.60


3120 Sales Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3120-30 Sales Tax - Local Use Tax $325,000.00 $0.00 $325,000.00 $20,269.14 $0.00 $191,703.27 $133,296.73 59% $163,285.21


Rollup Account 3120 Sales Tax totals: $1,650,000.00 $0.00 $1,650,000.00 $98,999.19 $0.00 $839,472.25 $810,527.75 51% $826,202.18


3110 State Income Tax $2,200,000.00 $0.00 $2,200,000.00 $114,372.58 $0.00 $924,551.30 $1,275,448.70 42% $1,189,808.90


3099 Fund Revenue Budget $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 00 Non-Departmental 
totals:


$10,003,000.00 $0.00 $10,003,000.00 $219,752.62 $0.00 $3,337,935.60 $6,665,064.40 33% $3,750,557.71


Department: 00 Non-Departmental


Revenue


Fund: 100 General Fund
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3900 Interfund Transfer In $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $5,000.00


Department: 09 Focus House totals: $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $5,000.00


Department: 09 Focus House


3900 Interfund Transfer In $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3215 Probation Salary 
Reimbursements


$405,000.00 $0.00 $405,000.00 $47,621.41 $0.00 $190,639.52 $214,360.48 47% $323,285.82


Department: 08 Probation totals: $405,000.00 $0.00 $405,000.00 $47,621.41 $0.00 $190,639.52 $214,360.48 47% $323,285.82


Department: 08 Probation


3900 Interfund Transfer In $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $0.00


3396 County Fee -(Traffic) $134,000.00 $0.00 $134,000.00 $11,162.74 $0.00 $66,536.02 $67,463.98 50% $61,790.60


3395 Traffic Fines $410,000.00 $0.00 $410,000.00 $27,212.98 $0.00 $165,690.42 $244,309.58 40% $198,566.26


3390 Criminal Fines $145,000.00 $0.00 $145,000.00 $9,002.23 $0.00 $63,726.06 $81,273.94 44% $74,061.03


3385 Street Value Drugs $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 $286.63 $0.00 $2,285.64 $5,214.36 30% $2,923.28


3375 Public Defender $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $25.00 $0.00 $1,380.00 ($380.00) 138% $161.87


3362 Police Vehicle Fee $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $398.00 $0.00 $2,192.00 $2,808.00 44% $2,768.00


3357 Bailiff Fee $130,000.00 $0.00 $130,000.00 $9,209.00 $0.00 $60,020.23 $69,979.77 46% $62,839.27


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk totals: $857,500.00 $0.00 $857,500.00 $57,296.58 $0.00 $361,830.37 $495,669.63 42% $403,110.31


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk


3900 Interfund Transfer In $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0% $0.00


3218 Public Defender 
Reimbursement


$30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,714.74 $16,285.26 46% $13,393.79


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury totals: $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,714.74 $26,285.26 34% $13,393.79


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury


3310 Copies $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $29.00 $9,971.00 0% $4,793.20


Department: 03 Treasurer totals: $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $29.00 $9,971.00 0% $4,793.20


Department: 03 Treasurer
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3900 Interfund Transfer In $66,500.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 0% $0.00


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA


3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3900 Interfund Transfer In $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 0% $0.00


3610 Grants $15,595.00 $0.00 $15,595.00 $10,107.00 $0.00 $10,107.00 $5,488.00 65% $0.00


3608 Sold Property $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $12,550.00 $0.00 $56,301.00 ($31,301.00) 225% $28,360.00


3445 Work Release $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,931.74 $7,068.26 29% $2,448.00


3440 Tower Rent $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $2,708.34 $0.00 $8,750.04 $6,249.96 58% $7,784.65


3425 Jail Boarding $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $82,246.65 $0.00 $550,996.35 $449,003.65 55% $464,505.66


3420 Hirebacks $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3415 Fingerprinting $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $133.75 ($133.75) +++ $413.00


3410 Computer Rent $3,600.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 0% $1,800.00


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3233 Inmate Medical Reimbursement $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $174.95 $0.00 $1,074.01 $1,925.99 36% $1,435.81


3230 Sheriff's Department 
Reimbursements


$100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $400.00 $0.00 $4,687.51 $95,312.49 5% $8,595.79


Department: 12 Sheriff


3599 Other Licenses & Permits $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $1,784.15 $0.00 $12,400.10 $47,599.90 21% $17,470.47


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 11 Zoning totals: $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $1,784.15 $0.00 $12,400.10 $47,599.90 21% $17,470.47


Department: 11 Zoning


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9.00 ($9.00) +++ $73.60


3310 Copies $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $1,602.25 $0.00 $3,463.00 $537.00 87% $1,798.85


3220 Assessor's Salary 
Reimbursement


$32,500.00 $0.00 $32,500.00 $2,708.33 $0.00 $16,041.66 $16,458.34 49% $15,416.68


Department: 10 Assessment totals: $36,500.00 $0.00 $36,500.00 $4,310.58 $0.00 $19,513.66 $16,986.34 53% $17,289.13


Department: 10 Assessment
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4100 Salaries- Departmental $291,067.00 $0.00 $291,067.00 $23,272.10 $0.00 $139,632.60 $151,434.40 48% $135,611.64


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder


4900 Interfund Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4899 Other Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $893.76


Department: 00 Non-Departmental 
totals:


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $893.76


Department: 00 Non-Departmental


Expense


3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $574.70


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3210 Victim Witness Advocate 
Reimbursement


$30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $2,154.00 $0.00 $22,930.00 $7,070.00 76% $16,216.50


3205 State's Attorney Salary 
Reimbursement


$150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120,564.20 $29,435.80 80% $69,290.52


Department: 14 State's Attorney totals: $180,000.00 $0.00 $180,000.00 $2,154.00 $0.00 $143,494.20 $36,505.80 80% $86,081.72


Department: 14 State's Attorney


3999 Other Revenue $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 0% $1,565.00


3599 Other Licenses & Permits $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $360.00 $640.00 36% $510.00


3310 Copies $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $110.00 $390.00 22% $215.00


Department: 13 Coroner totals: $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $470.00 $3,530.00 12% $2,290.00


Department: 13 Coroner


3900 Interfund Transfer In $135,541.00 $0.00 $135,541.00 $0.00 $0.00 $86,386.02 $49,154.98 64% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency 
Communications totals:


$135,541.00 $0.00 $135,541.00 $0.00 $0.00 $86,386.02 $49,154.98 64% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency Communications


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA totals: $66,500.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 0% $0.00


Department: 12 Sheriff totals: $1,434,236.00 $0.00 $1,434,236.00 $108,186.94 $0.00 $721,367.42 $712,868.58 50% $515,342.91


Revenue Totals $13,118,236.00 $0.00 $13,118,236.00 $457,131.28 $0.00 $4,825,829.36 $8,292,406.64 37% $5,163,265.06
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4216 Telephone $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $4,059.73 $0.00 $30,074.77 $39,925.23 43% $60,059.19


4214 Gas (Heating) $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $4,655.14 $0.00 $60,211.29 $39,788.71 60% $56,841.39


4212 Electricity $200,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 $18,038.54 $0.00 $97,189.72 $102,810.28 49% $71,386.02


4210 Disposal Service $9,360.00 $0.00 $9,360.00 $780.00 $0.00 $5,074.15 $4,285.85 54% $4,680.00


4140 Holiday Pay $1,591.00 $0.00 $1,591.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98.45 $1,492.55 6% $1,266.18


4130 Overtime $2,400.00 $0.00 $2,400.00 $802.92 $0.00 $5,449.25 ($3,049.25) 227% $715.38


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $5,654.00 $0.00 $5,654.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,654.00 0% $1,526.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $354,523.00 $0.00 $354,523.00 $30,606.80 $0.00 $182,969.63 $171,553.37 52% $177,527.94


Department: 02 Building & Grounds


4742 Election Equipment $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0% $421.16


4714 Software Maintenance $17,000.00 $0.00 $17,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,414.74 $585.26 97% $12,063.50


4528 Voter Registration Supplies $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,297.78 $16,702.22 16% $6,406.60


4525 Election Supplies $42,086.00 $0.00 $42,086.00 $330.39 $0.00 $34,826.48 $7,259.52 83% $26,113.26


4412 Official Publications $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,185.50 $2,814.50 65% $8,240.50


4100 Salaries- Departmental $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 ($20.00) $0.00 $28,609.75 $11,390.25 72% $26,374.80


Sub-Department: 10 Elections totals: $157,086.00 $0.00 $157,086.00 $310.39 $0.00 $88,334.25 $68,751.75 56% $79,619.82


Sub-Department: 10 Elections


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,530.14 $0.00 $2,072.64 ($572.64) 138% $1,366.20


4720 Office Equipment $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0% $65.00


4714 Software Maintenance $17,500.00 $0.00 $17,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,693.00 $9,807.00 44% $6,125.00


4510 Office Supplies $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $1,034.84 $0.00 $3,469.86 $8,530.14 29% $3,445.24


4460 Registrar Births & Deaths $600.00 $0.00 $600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $600.00 0% $0.00


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $66.00 $0.00 $1,227.03 $2,772.97 31% $1,219.34


4410 Microfilming & Indexing $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $89.77 $0.00 $554.10 $1,445.90 28% $220.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $8,500.00 $0.00 $8,500.00 $1,391.90 $0.00 $5,114.40 $3,385.60 60% $2,385.00


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder 
totals:


$495,753.00 $0.00 $495,753.00 $27,695.14 $0.00 $248,097.88 $247,655.12 50% $230,057.24
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4100 Salaries- Departmental $118,000.00 $0.00 $118,000.00 $8,383.32 $0.00 $50,475.96 $67,524.04 43% $47,550.00


Department: 03 Treasurer


4890 Grant Expense $15,595.00 $0.00 $15,595.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,834.31 $4,760.69 69% $0.00


4770-30 Capital Improvements - - 
Weld Park


$9,600.00 $0.00 $9,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,600.00 0% $0.00


4755 Vehicle Purchase $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4740 Postage Meter & Rental $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4730 Equipment - New & Used $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0% $3,577.67


4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $25,700.00 $0.00 $25,700.00 $17,282.64 $0.00 $21,953.91 $3,746.09 85% $1,295.00


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $1,115.00 $0.00 $1,115.00 $0.00 $0.00 $165.00 $950.00 15% $0.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $6,095.00 $0.00 $6,095.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,195.84 $4,899.16 20% $805.25


4570 Uniforms $2,700.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,525.00 $175.00 94% $0.00


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$11,120.00 $0.00 $11,120.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,566.20 $9,553.80 14% $5,877.46


4540-10 Repairs & Maint - Facilities $85,000.00 $0.00 $85,000.00 $7,846.42 $0.00 $80,833.35 $4,166.65 95% $47,909.76


4540-30 Repairs & Maint - Facilities - 
Weld Park


$6,500.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,003.75 $3,496.25 46% $3,000.00


Rollup Account 4540 Repairs & Maint  
totals:


$91,500.00 $0.00 $91,500.00 $7,846.42 $0.00 $83,837.10 $7,662.90 92% $50,909.76


4520 Janitorial Supplies $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $3,294.86 $0.00 $12,412.85 $7,587.15 62% $6,838.94


4512 Copy Paper $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4490 Contingencies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4420 Training Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4220 Rent $3,600.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 100% $870.00


4218 Water $31,968.00 $0.00 $31,968.00 $922.68 $0.00 $12,930.03 $19,037.97 40% $16,338.69


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$29,474.00 $0.00 $29,474.00 $2,768.08 $0.00 $15,111.64 $14,362.36 51% $14,788.93


Rollup Account 4216 Telephone totals: $99,474.00 $0.00 $99,474.00 $6,827.81 $0.00 $45,186.41 $54,287.59 45% $74,848.12


Department: 02 Building & Grounds 
totals:


$1,001,995.00 $0.00 $1,001,995.00 $91,057.81 $0.00 $547,199.14 $454,795.86 55% $475,303.80
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4106 Salaries- Public Defenders $149,880.00 $0.00 $149,880.00 $13,660.02 $0.00 $82,335.53 $67,544.47 55% $72,757.44


4100 Salaries- Departmental $36,136.00 $0.00 $36,136.00 $3,011.34 $0.00 $18,068.04 $18,067.96 50% $17,541.48


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 100% $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $273.41 $0.00 $1,082.20 $417.80 72% $616.30


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$4,800.00 $0.00 $4,800.00 $42.35 $0.00 $2,499.26 $2,300.74 52% $2,470.11


4314 Contractual Services $5,118.00 $0.00 $5,118.00 $436.27 $0.00 $2,315.73 $2,802.27 45% $1,707.22


4220 Rent $16,500.00 $0.00 $16,500.00 $4,125.00 $0.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 50% $7,455.00


4216 Telephone $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $125.00 $0.00 $750.00 $750.00 50% $750.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $27,319.00 $0.00 $27,319.00 $2,276.58 $0.00 $13,659.48 $13,659.52 50% $13,261.56


Sub-Department: 20 Regional Supt of 
Schools totals:


$57,237.00 $0.00 $57,237.00 $7,278.61 $0.00 $29,056.67 $28,180.33 51% $26,260.19


Sub-Department: 20 Regional Supt of Schools


4250-40 Agency Allotments - Soil & 
Water Conservation


$25,717.00 $0.00 $25,717.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,717.00 0% $25,717.00


4250-20 Agency Allotments - Board 
of Health


$199,000.00 $0.00 $199,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $199,000.00 0% $0.00


Rollup Account 4250 Agency 
Allotments  totals:


$224,717.00 $0.00 $224,717.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $224,717.00 0% $25,717.00


Department: 04 HEW totals: $281,954.00 $0.00 $281,954.00 $7,278.61 $0.00 $29,056.67 $252,897.33 10% $51,977.19


Department: 04 HEW


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $750.00 $0.00 $750.00 $81.32 $0.00 $222.35 $527.65 30% $256.21


4720 Office Equipment $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0% $0.00


4714 Software Maintenance $12,250.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,125.00 $6,125.00 50% $6,125.00


4510 Office Supplies $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $9,575.40 $0.00 $13,184.34 $11,815.66 53% $10,617.77


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $287.40 $0.00 $1,032.81 $2,467.19 30% $439.53


4412 Official Publications $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $462.30 $1,537.70 23% $253.50


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $3,928.88 $0.00 $14,301.38 $10,698.62 57% $12,979.57


Department: 03 Treasurer totals: $186,600.00 $0.00 $186,600.00 $22,256.32 $0.00 $85,804.14 $100,795.86 46% $78,221.58
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4100 Salaries- Departmental $671,808.00 $0.00 $671,808.00 $56,547.74 $0.00 $338,186.10 $333,621.90 50% $309,728.26


Department: 08 Probation


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 0% $2,506.00


4720 Office Equipment $800.00 $0.00 $800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $800.00 0% $0.00


4516 Postage $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $7,000.00 53% $8,000.00


4510 Office Supplies $20,500.00 $0.00 $20,500.00 $359.06 $0.00 $5,537.86 $14,962.14 27% $12,891.19


4509 Jury Supplies $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $377.26 $0.00 $7,339.82 $2,660.18 73% $1,275.65


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$6,600.00 $0.00 $6,600.00 $553.35 $0.00 $2,858.57 $3,741.43 43% $2,440.88


4412 Official Publications $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $67.00 $0.00 $391.95 $1,108.05 26% $309.65


4312 Auditing $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $26,000.00 $0.00 $26,000.00 $2,205.99 $0.00 $6,104.72 $19,895.28 23% $13,470.29


4100 Salaries- Departmental $504,000.00 $0.00 $504,000.00 $44,274.00 $0.00 $265,498.53 $238,501.47 53% $243,092.04


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk totals: $587,400.00 $0.00 $587,400.00 $51,836.66 $0.00 $295,731.45 $291,668.55 50% $283,985.70


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $191.27 $0.00 $2,145.72 $1,854.28 54% $2,797.75


4720 Office Equipment $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $853.00 $4,147.00 17% $3,647.00


4535 Law Library Materials $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $999.00 $0.00 $12,734.31 $265.69 98% $11,945.40


4510 Office Supplies $7,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $800.56 $6,199.44 11% $1,874.58


4465 Jurors - Circuit Court $36,581.00 $0.00 $36,581.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,712.23 $32,868.77 10% $7,766.36


4442 Psychiatric Services $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $925.00 $7,075.00 12% $2,164.00


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $2,385.19 $0.00 $1,779.87 $4,220.13 30% $3,883.79


4345 Interpreter $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $785.95 $0.00 $5,609.65 ($1,609.65) 140% $4,289.77


4335 Expert Witnesses $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $484.89 $5,515.11 8% $786.00


4324 Appointed Attorneys $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,723.35 $7,276.65 79% $14,008.20


4274 CASA $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 100% $0.00


4112 Judges Reimbursement $2,320.00 $0.00 $2,320.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,331.24 ($11.24) 100% $2,321.06


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury totals: $317,917.00 $0.00 $317,917.00 $21,032.77 $0.00 $164,503.39 $153,413.61 52% $145,782.83
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4714 Software Maintenance $12,250.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,125.00 $6,125.00 50% $6,125.00


4530 Mapping $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $12,500.00 17% $13,719.00


4510 Office Supplies $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $124.66 $0.00 $3,152.09 $8,847.91 26% $5,224.70


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $46.80 $0.00 $133.38 $1,866.62 7% $516.44


4420 Training Expenses $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $340.00 $0.00 $340.00 $1,660.00 17% $1,421.67


4412 Official Publications $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $33.75 $0.00 $47.15 $9,952.85 0% $13.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $188,000.00 $0.00 $188,000.00 $15,625.00 $0.00 $93,750.00 $94,250.00 50% $88,491.24


Department: 10 Assessment


4555 Animal Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $92.40 $0.00 $1,789.37 $3,210.63 36% $3,526.13


4444 Medical Expense $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $55.08 $0.00 $195.57 $1,804.43 10% $1,304.34


4440 Personal Care & Hygiene $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $5.38 $0.00 $470.70 $529.30 47% $640.90


4435 Transportation of Detainees $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $786.10 $0.00 $7,549.60 $5,450.40 58% $4,640.99


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $140,000.00 $0.00 $140,000.00 $16,174.40 $0.00 $111,175.40 $28,824.60 79% $119,674.79


4100 Salaries- Departmental $760,026.00 $0.00 $760,026.00 $64,370.36 $0.00 $398,307.82 $361,718.18 52% $387,766.28


Department: 09 Focus House totals: $921,026.00 $0.00 $921,026.00 $81,483.72 $0.00 $519,488.46 $401,537.54 56% $517,553.43


Department: 09 Focus House


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4438 Juvenile Detention Fees $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $4,030.00 $0.00 $29,133.86 ($14,133.86) 194% $12,420.00


4250-70 Agency Allotments - Youth 
Service Bureau


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 100% $4,672.46


Department: 08 Probation totals: $698,808.00 $0.00 $698,808.00 $60,577.74 $0.00 $379,319.96 $319,488.04 54% $326,820.72
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4420 Training Expenses $67,424.00 $0.00 $67,424.00 $4,248.72 $0.00 $29,441.86 $37,982.14 44% $26,321.83


4140 Holiday Pay $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $5,642.94 $0.00 $55,109.15 $44,890.85 55% $59,165.74


4130 Overtime $134,215.00 $0.00 $134,215.00 $8,881.71 $0.00 $71,150.07 $63,064.93 53% $142,203.17


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $20,826.00 $0.00 $20,826.00 $2,002.50 $0.00 $10,413.00 $10,413.00 50% $10,514.24


4111 Salaries- Merit Commission $8,870.00 $0.00 $8,870.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,226.62 $7,643.38 14% $2,913.33


4108 Salaries- Bailiffs $202,601.00 $0.00 $202,601.00 $17,985.72 $0.00 $108,830.86 $93,770.14 54% $96,402.83


4100 Salaries- Departmental $2,013,130.00 $0.00 $2,013,130.00 $168,804.55 $0.00 $1,015,434.16 $997,695.84 50% $1,084,351.55


Department: 12 Sheriff


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $157.40 $842.60 16% $126.71


4720 Office Equipment $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $589.00 $411.00 59% $0.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $4,600.00 $0.00 $4,600.00 $81.70 $0.00 $272.26 $4,327.74 6% $918.52


4510 Office Supplies $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $315.02 $0.00 $2,076.54 $5,923.46 26% $3,086.76


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $606.65 $0.00 $2,136.86 $5,863.14 27% $2,570.15


4412 Official Publications $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $271.15 $0.00 $1,349.28 $3,150.72 30% $977.87


4146 Regional Planning Commission $3,300.00 $0.00 $3,300.00 $339.85 $0.00 $1,064.85 $2,235.15 32% $1,470.00


4145 Board of Appeals $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 $500.00 $0.00 $2,146.40 $5,353.60 29% $2,189.50


4100 Salaries- Departmental $139,828.00 $0.00 $139,828.00 $10,485.66 $0.00 $65,222.19 $74,605.81 47% $70,952.75


Department: 11 Zoning totals: $177,728.00 $0.00 $177,728.00 $12,600.03 $0.00 $75,014.78 $102,713.22 42% $82,292.26


Department: 11 Zoning


4510 Office Supplies $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,762.41 $1,237.59 59% $1,352.33


4412 Official Publications $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,029.70 $470.30 69% $1,309.40


4100 Salaries- Departmental $14,000.00 $0.00 $14,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,531.00 $469.00 97% $11,572.05


Sub-Department: 40 Board of Review 
totals:


$18,500.00 $0.00 $18,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,323.11 $2,176.89 88% $14,233.78


Sub-Department: 40 Board of Review


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31.00 $969.00 3% $227.15


4720 Office Equipment $5,500.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $425.00 $0.00 $2,550.00 $2,950.00 46% $2,550.00


Department: 10 Assessment totals: $266,250.00 $0.00 $266,250.00 $16,595.21 $0.00 $124,951.73 $141,298.27 47% $132,521.98
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4710 Computer Hardware & Software $7,765.00 $0.00 $7,765.00 $5,577.75 $0.00 $5,577.75 $2,187.25 72% $0.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $1,638.00 $0.00 $1,638.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22.63 $1,615.37 1% $2,546.26


4570 Uniforms $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $62.50 $0.00 $577.86 $622.14 48% $375.00


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$3,193.00 $0.00 $3,193.00 $501.55 $0.00 $1,574.90 $1,618.10 49% $2,258.05


4510 Office Supplies $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $15.50 $0.00 $333.40 $666.60 33% $251.76


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $20.70 $0.00 $140.18 $1,359.82 9% $503.23


4216 Telephone $14,000.00 $0.00 $14,000.00 $933.73 $0.00 $6,535.49 $7,464.51 47% $6,461.80


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $148.02 $0.00 $1,198.50 $2,301.50 34% $1,570.40


Rollup Account 4216 Telephone totals: $17,500.00 $0.00 $17,500.00 $1,081.75 $0.00 $7,733.99 $9,766.01 44% $8,032.20


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $3,855.00 $0.00 $3,855.00 $0.00 $0.00 $198.75 $3,656.25 5% $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $58,364.00 $0.00 $58,364.00 $4,840.16 $0.00 $29,040.96 $29,323.04 50% $28,194.96


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA


4755 Vehicle Purchase $200,068.00 $0.00 $200,068.00 $0.00 $0.00 $185,737.14 $14,330.86 93% $234,489.65


4737 Maintainence of Radios $24,185.00 $0.00 $24,185.00 $400.00 $0.00 $480.00 $23,705.00 2% $53,049.98


4730-30 Equipment - New & Used - - 
Radio Equipment


$82,167.00 $0.00 $82,167.00 $816.00 $0.00 $62,280.20 $19,886.80 76% $94,274.64


4726 Furniture $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0% $885.76


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $527.04 $0.00 $3,447.56 $4,552.44 43% $4,545.58


4720 Office Equipment $26,485.00 $0.00 $26,485.00 $6,529.70 $0.00 $7,275.45 $19,209.55 27% $5,206.83


4715 Computer Maintenance $21,500.00 $0.00 $21,500.00 $1,181.38 $0.00 $30,408.36 ($8,908.36) 141% $7,395.69


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $15,552.00 $0.00 $15,552.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,443.43 ($2,891.43) 119% $11,571.95


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $116,320.00 $0.00 $116,320.00 $10,526.62 $0.00 $78,778.17 $37,541.83 68% $61,407.44


4575 Weapons & Ammunition $35,003.00 $0.00 $35,003.00 $920.26 $0.00 $16,155.98 $18,847.02 46% $11,563.06


4570 Uniforms $43,915.00 $0.00 $43,915.00 $4,342.84 $0.00 $13,984.02 $29,930.98 32% $16,229.19


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$164,986.00 $0.00 $164,986.00 $10,106.74 $0.00 $65,415.54 $99,570.46 40% $68,501.28


4510 Office Supplies $32,625.00 $0.00 $32,625.00 $1,095.18 $0.00 $15,076.77 $17,548.23 46% $23,607.29


4424 Out-of-State Travel $2,763.00 $0.00 $2,763.00 $357.71 $0.00 $2,340.11 $422.89 85% $0.00
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4420 Training Expenses $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $188.25 $2,311.75 8% $154.00


4355 Autopsy Fees $22,800.00 $0.00 $22,800.00 $1,400.00 $0.00 $12,558.64 $10,241.36 55% $12,068.38


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $37,014.00 $0.00 $37,014.00 $3,384.54 $0.00 $19,564.97 $17,449.03 53% $18,112.76


4100 Salaries- Departmental $78,239.00 $0.00 $78,239.00 $6,519.94 $0.00 $39,961.91 $38,277.09 51% $36,208.44


Department: 13 Coroner


4737 Maintainence of Radios $72,556.00 $0.00 $72,556.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,682.36 $33,873.64 53% $0.00


4726 Furniture $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $509.29 ($509.29) +++ $0.00


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0% $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $9,588.00 $0.00 $9,588.00 $2,996.64 $0.00 $12,942.03 ($3,354.03) 135% $0.00


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $43,136.00 $0.00 $43,136.00 $1,477.55 $0.00 $16,052.27 $27,083.73 37% $0.00


4570 Uniforms $2,880.00 $0.00 $2,880.00 $72.00 $0.00 $122.50 $2,757.50 4% $0.00


4500 Supplies $2,475.00 $0.00 $2,475.00 $0.00 $0.00 $372.05 $2,102.95 15% $0.00


4424 Out-of-State Travel $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4420 Training Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $342.01 ($342.01) +++ $0.00


4140 Holiday Pay $29,000.00 $0.00 $29,000.00 $1,926.06 $0.00 $15,586.63 $13,413.37 54% $0.00


4130 Overtime $36,000.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 $2,193.25 $0.00 $18,561.97 $17,438.03 52% $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $530,035.00 $0.00 $530,035.00 $45,455.06 $0.00 $263,268.49 $266,766.51 50% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency 
Communications totals:


$726,670.00 $0.00 $726,670.00 $54,120.56 $0.00 $366,439.60 $360,230.40 50% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency Communications


4755 Vehicle Purchase $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 100% $8,000.00


4737 Maintainence of Radios $1,514.00 $0.00 $1,514.00 $54.00 $0.00 $378.00 $1,136.00 25% $651.46


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $172.86 $0.00 $1,245.42 $1,504.58 45% $864.30


4720 Office Equipment $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0% $825.16


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA totals: $109,279.00 $0.00 $109,279.00 $12,326.77 $0.00 $54,823.84 $54,455.16 50% $52,502.38


Department: 12 Sheriff totals: $4,157,084.00 $0.00 $4,157,084.00 $310,816.94 $0.00 $2,212,691.89 $1,944,392.11 53% $2,067,103.41
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4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $252.48 $0.00 $815.35 $3,184.65 20% $755.98


4720 Office Equipment $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 0% $143.99


4538 Legal Materials & Books $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $1,467.34 $0.00 $7,801.27 $4,198.73 65% $5,971.33


4510 Office Supplies $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $798.66 $0.00 $5,163.83 $9,836.17 34% $5,169.42


4450 Investigation Expense $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $260.73 $739.27 26% $227.38


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $1,563.01 $0.00 $7,222.70 $4,777.30 60% $6,324.26


4415-10 Printing - Appeals & 
Transcripts


$6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $724.20 $0.00 $5,747.86 $252.14 96% $2,823.50


4340 IL Appellate Prosecutor $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 100% $15,000.00


4335 Expert Witnesses $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $0.00


4274 CASA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) +++ $0.00


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $920.50 $9,079.50 9% $3,765.00


4107 Salaries-Victim Witness 
Advocate


$33,259.00 $0.00 $33,259.00 $2,536.84 $0.00 $15,221.04 $18,037.96 46% $16,973.64


4100 Salaries- Departmental $577,443.00 $0.00 $577,443.00 $47,879.86 $0.00 $286,299.10 $291,143.90 50% $250,099.99


Department: 14 State's Attorney totals: $694,702.00 $0.00 $694,702.00 $55,222.39 $0.00 $349,452.38 $345,249.62 50% $307,254.49


Department: 14 State's Attorney


4755 Vehicle Purchase $4,782.00 $0.00 $4,782.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,781.07 $0.93 100% $4,782.00


4720 Office Equipment $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $980.90 $219.10 82% $414.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $701.59 $0.00 $1,784.96 $715.04 71% $1,757.30


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $201.02 $0.00 $958.62 $2,541.38 27% $1,522.67


4510 Office Supplies $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $200.00 $0.00 $1,576.20 $2,923.80 35% $3,269.34


4458 Coroner Lab Fees $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $720.00 $0.00 $3,574.98 $6,425.02 36% $2,800.14


4455 Coroner Jurors $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,712.60 $2,287.40 54% $1,629.40


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $375.00 $1,625.00 19% $493.37


Department: 13 Coroner totals: $174,035.00 $0.00 $174,035.00 $13,127.09 $0.00 $89,018.10 $85,016.90 51% $83,211.80
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4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $440.00 $1,560.00 22% $1,935.93


4100 Salaries- Departmental $65,200.00 $0.00 $65,200.00 $23,831.33 $0.00 $29,131.33 $36,068.67 45% $43,749.96


Sub-Department: 30 County Administrator


4770-20 Capital Improvements - - 
Ogle County Fair Assn


$5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $0.00


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $641.90 $0.00 $1,405.57 $94.43 94% $763.38


4490 Contingencies $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $2,640.23 $0.00 $15,615.38 $84,384.62 16% $40,548.03


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$15,500.00 $0.00 $15,500.00 $1,580.62 $0.00 $8,777.38 $6,722.62 57% $7,900.90


4415-20 Printing - County Ordinances $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $1,360.00 $0.00 $1,360.00 ($860.00) 272% $180.00


4412 Official Publications $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $264.60 $35.40 88% $0.00


4312 Auditing $57,950.00 $0.00 $57,950.00 $0.00 $0.00 $53,200.00 $4,750.00 92% $45,400.00


4250-30 Agency Allotments - 
Economic Development Dist. Dues


$11,679.00 $0.00 $11,679.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,089.32 $5,589.68 52% $6,089.32


4250-60 Agency Allotments - NW IL 
Criminal Justice


$2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,990.00 ($490.00) 120% $0.00


Rollup Account 4250 Agency 
Allotments  totals:


$14,179.00 $0.00 $14,179.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,079.32 $5,099.68 64% $6,089.32


4148 Administrative Hearing Officer $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $0.00


4144 Pay Grade Study $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 0% $5,800.00


4142 IT/ Network Administration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.25


4100 Salaries- Departmental $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $34,250.00 $35,750.00 49% $33,150.00


Department: 16 Finance


4159 Workman's Compensation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4157 Unemployment Compensation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4155 Health Insurance $1,406,300.00 $0.00 $1,406,300.00 $119,726.74 $0.00 $706,646.26 $699,653.74 50% $613,444.50


4150 Blanket Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 15 Insurance totals: $1,406,300.00 $0.00 $1,406,300.00 $119,726.74 $0.00 $706,646.26 $699,653.74 50% $613,444.50


Department: 15 Insurance
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4570 Uniforms $12,218.00 $0.00 $12,218.00 $1,382.91 $0.00 $7,655.94 $4,562.06 63% $8,003.44


4550 Food for County Prisoners $172,699.00 $0.00 $172,699.00 $14,029.60 $0.00 $83,614.17 $89,084.83 48% $66,630.97


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$2,479.00 $0.00 $2,479.00 $601.54 $0.00 $1,326.90 $1,152.10 54% $1,101.27


4510 Office Supplies $32,646.00 $0.00 $32,646.00 $3,802.56 $0.00 $19,469.85 $13,176.15 60% $16,241.13


4446 Prisoner Mental Health $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $3,750.00 $0.00 $11,250.00 $3,750.00 75% $11,250.00


4444 Medical Expense $78,155.00 $0.00 $78,155.00 $7,342.75 $0.00 $40,921.70 $37,233.30 52% $35,329.08


4424 Out-of-State Travel $7,985.00 $0.00 $7,985.00 $2,358.26 $0.00 $4,093.10 $3,891.90 51% $1,108.40


4420 Training Expenses $5,702.00 $0.00 $5,702.00 $137.50 $0.00 $6,069.17 ($367.17) 106% $4,441.70


4140 Holiday Pay $36,794.00 $0.00 $36,794.00 $2,225.40 $0.00 $24,134.44 $12,659.56 66% $27,864.79


4130 Overtime $102,483.00 $0.00 $102,483.00 $7,718.53 $0.00 $59,481.00 $43,002.00 58% $64,192.65


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $32,782.00 $0.00 $32,782.00 $1,905.02 $0.00 $11,857.44 $20,924.56 36% $14,509.35


4100 Salaries- Departmental $1,077,244.00 $0.00 $1,077,244.00 $89,651.94 $0.00 $536,150.22 $541,093.78 50% $509,945.66


Department: 22 Corrections


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $25,225.00 $0.00 $25,225.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,358.81 $4,866.19 81% $15,270.62


4162 IMRF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4160 FICA/ Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4155 Health Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4142 IT/ Network Administration $45,000.00 $0.00 $45,000.00 $1,295.00 $0.00 $19,320.00 $25,680.00 43% $30,344.23


4100 Salaries- Departmental $22,900.00 $0.00 $22,900.00 $1,768.16 $0.00 $10,608.96 $12,291.04 46% $10,299.96


Sub-Department: 35 Information 
Technology totals:


$93,125.00 $0.00 $93,125.00 $3,063.16 $0.00 $50,287.77 $42,837.23 54% $55,914.81


Sub-Department: 35 Information Technology


4740 Postage Meter & Rental $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,539.98 $2,460.02 38% $1,535.15


4512 Copy Paper $9,000.00 $0.00 $9,000.00 $1,240.00 $0.00 $5,504.68 $3,495.32 61% $4,144.00


4510 Office Supplies $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0% $208.19


4490 Contingencies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Sub-Department: 30 County 
Administrator totals:


$80,700.00 $0.00 $80,700.00 $25,071.33 $0.00 $36,615.99 $44,084.01 45% $51,573.23


Department: 16 Finance totals: $448,254.00 $0.00 $448,254.00 $40,357.24 $0.00 $210,856.01 $237,397.99 47% $247,319.92
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4737 Maintainence of Radios $450.00 $0.00 $450.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $450.00 0% $0.00


4730-30 Equipment - New & Used - - 
Radio Equipment


$1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,050.95 $149.05 88% $3,159.00


4726 Furniture $700.00 $0.00 $700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $700.00 0% $0.00


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $340.50 $0.00 $2,072.12 $677.88 75% $1,770.10


4720 Office Equipment $12,305.00 $0.00 $12,305.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,305.00 0% $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $23,742.00 $0.00 $23,742.00 $112.50 $0.00 $16,860.44 $6,881.56 71% $250.50


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $3,420.00 $0.00 $3,420.00 $0.00 $0.00 $418.00 $3,002.00 12% $0.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $3,730.00 $0.00 $3,730.00 $403.00 $0.00 $442.48 $3,287.52 12% $3,905.45


4575 Weapons & Ammunition $2,829.00 $0.00 $2,829.00 $0.00 $0.00 $815.35 $2,013.65 29% $250.00


Department: 22 Corrections totals: $1,627,313.00 $0.00 $1,627,313.00 $135,762.01 $0.00 $827,683.27 $799,629.73 51% $769,953.49


Expenditure Totals: $13,443,119.00 $0.00 $13,443,119.00 $1,067,426.42 $0.00 $6,865,515.51 $6,577,603.49 51% $6,413,698.10


Revenue Totals: $13,118,236.00 $0.00 $13,118,236.00 $457,131.28 $0.00 $4,825,829.36 $8,292,406.64 37% $5,163,265.06


Fund Totals: General Fund ($324,883.00) $0.00 ($324,883.00) ($610,295.14) $0.00 ($2,039,686.15) $1,714,803.15 ($1,250,433.04)


Expenditure Grand Totals: $13,443,119.00 $0.00 $13,443,119.00 $1,067,426.42 $0.00 $6,865,515.51 $6,577,603.49 51% $6,413,698.10


Revenue Grand Totals: $13,118,236.00 $0.00 $13,118,236.00 $457,131.28 $0.00 $4,825,829.36 $8,292,406.64 37% $5,163,265.06


Grand Totals: ($324,883.00) $0.00 ($324,883.00) ($610,295.14) $0.00 ($2,039,686.15) $1,714,803.15 ($1,250,433.04)
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1000.002 Cash - AB - Solid Waste 343,050.34 222.68 20,994.77 322,278.25
1000.004 Cash - AB - County Highway 562,423.17 6,162.92 243,923.62 324,662.47
1000.006 Cash - AB - Treasurer 100,307.19 10.57 0.00 100,317.76
1000.010 Cash - BB - Insurance Reserve 98,542.32 4,718.82 4,214.75 99,046.39
1000.011 Cash - BB - Bond Fund 53,388.39 53.70 0.00 53,442.09
1000.012 Cash - BB - Probation Service Fee 53,019.21 8,328.09 10,455.60 50,891.70
1000.014 Cash - BB - County Bridge 216,228.04 1,845.25 86,817.06 131,256.23
1000.016 Cash - - BB - Document Storage 117,390.26 6,025.46 0.00 123,415.72
1000.018 Cash - BB - Long Range Planning 1,638,857.80 316,179.71 148,881.81 1,806,155.70
1000.020 Cash - FSB - TB Checking 8,523.84 90.00 2,307.73 6,306.11
1000.022 Cash - FSB - TB Money Market 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000.024 Cash - FSB - 911 513,835.20 19,254.06 28,066.13 505,023.13
1000.030 Cash - HSB - Federal Aid Matching 430,316.84 47,412.70 377,256.71 100,472.83
1000.032 Cash - HSB - War Veterans Assistance 39,093.30 0.00 8,895.16 30,198.14
1000.034 Cash - HSB - Solid Waste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000.040 Cash - NBR - Treasurer 999,133.12 1,325,690.02 1,234,505.33 1,090,317.81
1000.042 Cash - NBR - Township MFT 1,086,364.93 95,815.92 66,390.96 1,115,789.89
1000.044 Cash - NBR - Engineering 42,943.81 24.78 42.39 42,926.20
1000.046 Cash - NBR - Vital Records 72,890.35 1,688.72 0.00 74,579.07
1000.048 Cash - NBR - GIS Fee Fund 125,320.59 18,797.64 0.00 144,118.23
1000.050 Cash - NBR - Marriage Fund 3,575.23 61.67 0.00 3,636.90
1000.055 Cash - Polo - Dependent Children's 69,533.13 16,033.25 25,124.12 60,442.26
1000.060 Cash - RRB - Animal Control 135,231.56 15,033.01 11,111.60 139,152.97
1000.062 Cash - RRB - Public Health 155,430.46 20,058.81 84,642.03 90,847.24
1000.064 Cash - RRB - Payroll Clearing 0.00 1,229,861.51 1,229,861.51 0.00
1000.066 Cash - RRB - County MFT 102,970.35 78,608.91 45,747.67 135,831.59
1000.068 Cash - RRB - GIS Committee Fund 57,164.25 1,255.51 9,427.34 48,992.42
1000.070 Cash - RRB - County Orders 0.00 1,067,647.44 1,067,647.44 0.00
1000.072 Cash - RRB - A/P Clearing 0.00 1,090,772.46 1,090,772.46 0.00
1000.074 Cash - - RRB - County Indemnity 35,115.14 0.00 0.00 35,115.14
1000.076 Cash - RRB - Social Security 32,756.05 100,994.38 60,836.71 72,913.72
1000.078 Cash - RRB - Treasurer 14,751.30 2,259.27 0.00 17,010.57
1000.080 Cash - SV - Mental Health 126,628.99 23.02 64,257.42 62,394.59
1000.082 Cash - SV - Township Bridge 28,445.72 15.39 25,000.00 3,461.11
1000.084 Cash - SV - IMRF 212,866.36 163,818.06 277,285.27 99,399.15
1000.086 Cash - SV - County Automation 90,138.19 6,274.22 0.00 96,412.41
1000.088 Cash - SV - Recorder's Resolution 116,455.00 5,495.16 3,549.67 118,400.49
1000.090 Cash SV - Health Claims 0.00 110,144.47 110,144.47 0.00
1000.091 Cash - SV - Flex Spending 4,121.51 2,447.42 2,009.89 4,559.04
1000.099 Cash - Treasurer's Cash 1,909.63 0.00 0.00 1,909.63
1002.002 Investments - RRB Insurance Reserve 342,201.93 1,405.97 0.00 343,607.90
1002.004 Investments - Insurance Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.006 Investments - RRB County MFT 110,000.00 100,000.00 110,000.00 100,000.00
1002.007 Investments - SV Township Bridge 15,000.00 40,000.00 15,000.00 40,000.00
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1002.008 Investments - HSB -FAM 2,795,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,545,000.00 2,750,000.00
1002.009 Investments - BB -Thorpe Road


Overpass
276,633.00 0.00 0.00 276,633.00


1002.010 Investments - NBR Township MFT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.012 Investments - NBR Engineering 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.013 Investments - RRB- GIS Committee 350,000.00 0.00 0.00 350,000.00
1002.014 Investments - Storm Water


Management
44,454.31 0.00 0.00 44,454.31


1002.015 Investments - NBR - FAM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.016 Investments - FSB -911 969,807.26 0.00 0.00 969,807.26
1002.018 Investments - RRB -911 873,974.46 0.00 0.00 873,974.46
1002.020 Investments - RRB Indemnity 223,639.06 0.00 0.00 223,639.06
1002.021 Investments - FSB-Solid Waste 401,073.69 573.59 0.00 401,647.28
1002.022 Investments - HSB Solid Waste 800,000.00 0.00 0.00 800,000.00
1002.024 Investments - LSB Solid Waste 1,153,547.84 0.00 0.00 1,153,547.84
1002.026 Investments - NBB Solid Waste 1,056,619.06 0.00 0.00 1,056,619.06
1002.028 Investments - HSB Long Range Capital


Imp
2,787,660.71 0.00 0.00 2,787,660.71


1002.029 Investments - FSB - Long Range
Capital Improve


512,027.55 751,094.20 0.00 1,263,121.75


1002.030 Investments - Long Range Capital Imp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.031 Investments - NBR County General 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.032 Investments - BB Long Range Capital


Imp
2,521,804.39 0.00 0.00 2,521,804.39


1002.033 Investments - SV - Long Range Capital 512,238.40 16,082.62 528,321.02 0.00
1002.034 Investments - TB 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.036 Investments - Public Health 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.038 Investments - FSB Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.040 Investments - Polo Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.042 Investments - HSB - Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.043 Investments - RRB - Treasurer 560,785.97 4,102.19 564,888.16 0.00
1002.069 Investments - NBR- Long Range


Capital
2,255,109.93 14,061.40 1,064,278.42 1,204,892.91


1002.079 Investments - BB- Bond Fund 1,144,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,144,000.00
1004 Postage 8,545.21 5,000.00 1,592.92 11,952.29
1010 Municipal Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1100 Accounts Receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1101 Due From 0.00 2,320,633.97 2,320,633.97 0.00


Grand Total: 76 Account(s) $27,402,844.34 $10,516,078.94 $12,489,884.11 $25,429,039.17
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100 General Fund 100 General Fund (1,234,483.38) 1,531,371.64 2,141,666.78 (1,844,778.52)
120 AP Clearing 120 AP Clearing 0.00 2,181,544.92 2,181,544.92 0.00
130 County Payroll Clearing 130 County Payroll Clearing 0.00 2,459,723.02 2,459,723.02 0.00
140 County OfficersFund 120 AP Clearing 723,489.44 647,797.35 564,888.16 806,398.63
150 Social Security 120 AP Clearing 32,756.05 100,994.38 60,836.71 72,913.72
160 IMRF 120 AP Clearing 212,866.36 163,818.06 277,285.27 99,399.15
170 Capital Improvement Fund 120 AP Clearing 43.87 0.00 0.00 43.87
180 Long Range Capital Improvemnt 120 AP Clearing 10,227,698.78 1,097,417.93 1,741,481.25 9,583,635.46
182 Judicial Facility Project Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
183 Justice Project Fund II 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
185 Bond Fund 120 AP Clearing 1,197,388.39 53.70 0.00 1,197,442.09
200 County Highway 120 AP Clearing 562,423.17 6,162.92 243,923.62 324,662.47
210 County Bridge Fund 120 AP Clearing 216,228.04 1,845.25 86,817.06 131,256.23
212 Thorpe Road Overpass 120 AP Clearing 276,633.00 0.00 0.00 276,633.00
220 County Motor Fuel Tax Fund 120 AP Clearing 212,970.35 178,608.91 155,747.67 235,831.59
230 County Highway Engineering 120 AP Clearing 42,943.81 24.78 42.39 42,926.20
240 Federal Aid Matching 120 AP Clearing 3,225,316.84 1,547,412.70 1,922,256.71 2,850,472.83
250 Township Roads - Motor Fuel Tax 120 AP Clearing 1,086,364.93 95,815.92 66,390.96 1,115,789.89
260 Township Bridge Fund 120 AP Clearing 43,445.72 40,015.39 40,000.00 43,461.11
270 GIS Committee Fund 120 AP Clearing 407,164.25 1,255.51 9,427.34 398,992.42
280 Storm Water Management 120 AP Clearing 44,454.31 0.00 0.00 44,454.31
300 Insurance - Hospital & Medical 120 AP Clearing 1,429,256.40 316,718.63 255,000.66 1,490,974.37
310 Insurance Premium Levy 120 AP Clearing 358,858.14 0.00 3,553.70 355,304.44
320 Self Insurance Reserve 120 AP Clearing 440,744.25 6,124.79 4,214.75 442,654.29
350 County Ordinance 120 AP Clearing 90,911.03 4,032.00 10,936.00 84,007.03
360 Marriage Fund 120 AP Clearing 3,575.23 61.67 0.00 3,636.90
370 Law Library 120 AP Clearing 19,722.52 1,450.00 4,547.75 16,624.77
400 Public Health 120 AP Clearing 155,430.46 20,058.81 84,642.03 90,847.24
410 TB Fund 120 AP Clearing 8,523.84 90.00 2,307.73 6,306.11
420 Animal Control 120 AP Clearing 83,656.70 13,353.01 9,184.31 87,825.40
425 Pet Population Control 120 AP Clearing 51,574.86 1,680.00 1,927.29 51,327.57
430 Solid Waste 120 AP Clearing 3,754,290.93 796.27 20,994.77 3,734,092.43
450 Inheritance Tax Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
455 Trust Deposits 120 AP Clearing 1,537.72 0.00 0.00 1,537.72
460 Condemnation Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 7,900.00 0.00 7,900.00
465 Hotel/ MotelTax 120 AP Clearing 3,326.78 1,503.77 0.00 4,830.55
470 Cooperative Extension Service 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
475 Mental Health 120 AP Clearing 126,628.99 23.02 64,257.42 62,394.59
480 Senior Social Services 120 AP Clearing 1,643.56 0.00 0.00 1,643.56
485 War Veterans Assisstance 120 AP Clearing 39,093.30 0.00 8,895.16 30,198.14
500 Recorder's Automation 120 AP Clearing 116,455.00 5,495.16 3,549.67 118,400.49
510 GIS Fee Fund 120 AP Clearing 125,320.59 18,797.64 0.00 144,118.23
520 Recorder's GIS Fund 120 AP Clearing 65,855.36 1,374.00 0.00 67,229.36
530 Vital Records 120 AP Clearing 7,034.99 314.72 0.00 7,349.71
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550 Document Storage Fee Fund 120 AP Clearing 117,390.26 6,025.46 0.00 123,415.72
555 County Automation -Circuit Clerk 120 AP Clearing 90,138.19 6,274.22 0.00 96,412.41
560 Dependant Children 120 AP Clearing 67,972.82 14,715.60 23,663.02 59,025.40
565 Dependant Children Medicaid 120 AP Clearing 99.21 0.00 0.00 99.21
570 Probation Services 120 AP Clearing 53,019.21 8,328.09 10,455.60 50,891.70
572 Victim Impact 120 AP Clearing 864.00 70.00 0.00 934.00
575 Juvenile Restitution Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
580 Alts to Detention IPCSA/IJJ 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
585 JAIBG Equipment #59087 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
590 ICJIC Probation Grant 500053 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
595 Juvenile Diversion 120 AP Clearing 1,461.10 1,317.65 1,461.10 1,317.65
600 Drug Assistance Forfeiture 120 AP Clearing 14,700.67 0.00 0.00 14,700.67
605 Bad Check Restitution 120 AP Clearing 5,162.78 211.24 0.00 5,374.02
610 OEMA 120 AP Clearing 82,456.22 0.00 0.00 82,456.22
611 EOC 120 AP Clearing 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
615 Take Bond Fee 120 AP Clearing 49,917.30 1,800.00 0.00 51,717.30
620 Sheriff's Petty Cash 120 AP Clearing 6,292.93 0.00 195.16 6,097.77
625 DUI Equipment 120 AP Clearing 4,444.34 0.00 0.00 4,444.34
630 Arrestee's Medical Cost 120 AP Clearing 11,305.58 732.00 0.00 12,037.58
635 Drug Traffic Prevention 120 AP Clearing 3,575.88 110.00 0.00 3,685.88
640 911 Emergency 120 AP Clearing 1,002,187.53 15,533.79 16,527.98 1,001,193.34
645 911 Wireless 120 AP Clearing 1,355,429.39 3,720.27 11,538.15 1,347,611.51
650 Out of County Medical 120 AP Clearing 6,345.80 0.00 0.00 6,345.80
660 Federal/ State Grants 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
665 Fed/State Reimb/Overtime 120 AP Clearing 62,172.77 3,604.75 0.00 65,777.52
700 Tax Sale Automation 120 AP Clearing 23,009.58 0.00 0.00 23,009.58
710 Indemnity Cost Fund 120 AP Clearing 258,754.20 0.00 0.00 258,754.20


Grand Total: 71 Fund(s) $27,402,844.34 $10,516,078.94 $12,489,884.11 $25,429,039.17
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RESOLUTION 2009-0603 
and 


CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 
 


 WHEREAS, the appointment to the Byron Museum District by 


the Ogle County Board, AND WHEREAS, the name of  


 


Ronald R. Beem 


9857 Woodgate Lane 


Byron, IL 61010 


 


who is an elector of said district, is presented to the Ogle County Board 


for approval of appointment,  


BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the appointment is for a term which 


ends June 30, 2014. 


 


Voted upon and passed by the Ogle County Board on June 16, 2009. 


 


   
 ________________________________________ 
         W. Ed Rice, Chairman 
     Ogle County Board 
 
 
 
 (COUNTY SEAL) 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk 
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This meeting will be taped  
Ogle County Board Meeting Agenda     


 
Tuesday, June 16, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. 


 
Ogle County Farm Bureau Bldg., 421 W Pines Rd, Oregon 


 
Call to Order:   
Roll Call:   
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance: Diehl 
 


• Motion to approve the May 19, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting minutes 
• Motion to accept monthly reports of the Ogle County Clerk/Recorder, Treasurer and Circuit Clerk  
 


Presentation –  
• Nicholas Sakellariou – Clarification regarding Circuit Clerk Union Contract 


 
Resignation –  


• Lost Nation/New Landing RCD – Martin Portner (R-2009-0601) 
 


Vacancies –  
• Board of Health – 2 unexpired term ends 11/30/2012 
• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 11/30/2011 - applicant is required to be a Dentist 
• Mental Health “708” Board – unexpired term ends 12/31/2012 
• Ogle County Civic Center Authority Board – 1 unexpired term ends 05/31/2011 
• Lost Nation/New Landing RCD – 1 unexpired term ends 04/30/2011 
 


Application deadline for these vacancies will be  
Friday, July 3, 2009 at 4:30 p.m. in the County Clerk’s Office 


 
Appointments –  


• 9-1-1 ETS Board – Edward R. O’Brien - Oregon (R-2009-0602) 
• Byron Museum District – Ronald R. Beem – Byron (R-2009-0603) 
 


Zoning –  None 
 
Public Comment –  
 
Road & Bridge –  


• Steward Road Construction Stakeout contract with Willett, Hoffman & Associates. Hourly fee 
 with an estimated cost of $76,572 (R-2009-0604) 
 
• Eagle Point Road Hydraulic Study with Willett, Hofmann & Associates preparing for the 
 replacement of a structure on Eagle Point Road. Hourly  fee not to exceed $21,517.90  
 (2009-0605) 


 
Ogle County Claims – Clerk reads the claims:  
 


• Payments in Vacation –  May 2009  -  $105,132.14 
• County Board Payments -  June  2009 – $187,823.40 
• County Highway Fund – $90,038.98 
 


o Motion to approve claims as presented  
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Committee Reports –  
 


• Finance: 
o Next Committee Meeting to be held on Tuesday, July 14, 2009 at 1:00 p.m., Sheriff Training 


Room  
 
• Sheriff: 


o Resolution for Pursuit of the Preparation of an All Hazard Mitigation Plan (R-2009-0606) 
o July 15, 2009 Committee Meeting to be held at Weld Park at 8:00 a.m. 


 
• Juvenile & Probation: 


o Mike Dale – Focus House Update 
 


•  LRP – Courthouse Renovation Committee: 
o Update 
o Approve Long Range Planning Invoices (R-2009-0607) 
o Resolution - To Accept and Enter into a Contract Regarding the Ogle County Courthouse 


Renovation Project – EVS Construction (R-2009-0608)  
o Resolution - To Accept and Enter into a Contract Regarding the Ogle County Courthouse 


Renovation Project – Ringland-Johnson Construction (R-2009-0609)  
 


• Chairman Comments: 
o Recognition of Lynn Kilker, Certified County Officials Program (CCO) 
 


• Administrator Comments:  
o Budget Timeline 


 
Unfinished Business – 
 
New Business –  
 


• Ron Colson – Resolution for support of Small Business Development Centers (R-2009-0610) 
 
Communications –  


• Sales Tax for March 2009 was $25,162.70 and $57,204.48 
• Sales Tax for March 2008 was $34,929.95 and $73,229.56 
 


Motion to adjourn until Tuesday, July 21, 2009 at 5:30 p.m.  
 


Agenda is posted at the following locations: 
 


122 S. Wesley Ave, Mt Morris (Watt Bldg)  
Ogle County Farm Bureau Bldg., 421 W Pines Rd, Oregon 


 www.oglecounty.org 



http://www.oglecounty.org/






 
 


RESOLUTION 2009-0602 
and 


CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 
 


 WHEREAS, the appointment to the 911 ETS Board by the Ogle 
County Board, AND WHEREAS, the name of  


 
Edward R. O’Brien 


500 Jackson St 
Oregon, IL 61061 


 
who is an elector of said district, is presented to the Ogle County Board for 
approval of appointment,  
 
BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the appointment is for an unexpired term that 
will end June 30, 2012.  
 
Voted upon and passed by the Ogle County Board on June 16, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
    ________________________________________ 
     W. Ed Rice, Chairman 
     Ogle County Board 
 
 
 
 (COUNTY SEAL) 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk 












 
OGLE COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION 2009-0610 


 
 
 


Resolution for support of Small Business Development Centers 
 
 
 


WHEREAS, Ogle County is a participant of the Blackhawk Hills Resource Conservation 
and Development Council; 
 


WHEREAS, Blackhawk Hills RC&D is working to transition the Small Business 
Development Centers at Sauk Valley Community College and Highland Community College 
from grant supported offices to self-sustaining offices; 
 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Ogle County Board allocate 
$1,000.00 towards the future of the Northwest Illinois Small Business Development Centers. 
This allocation to be fund by  _______________________________. 


 
 
Presented and approved by the Ogle County Board on June 16, 2009. 


 
 
 
 


Attest: 
 
 


_____________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk 


 
 


_____________________________ 
        W. Ed Rice, Chairman 








Ogle County Finance & Insurance Committee  
Wednesday, June 10, 2009 


Tentative Minutes 
 


 
1. Call to Order: Chairman Hopkins calls the meeting to order at 2:30.   
 
2. Members present:  Hopkins, Rice, Saunders, Diehl, Kenney, Gronewold and White. 
 
3. Members absent: None 
 
4. Approval of Minutes/May 13, 2009 Meeting and May 19, 2009 Meeting: Motion by 


Kenney, 2nd by Rice. Motion carried.   
 
5. Approval of Bills:  


 Treasurer Invoices:  Motion by Saunders to approve bills in the amount of 
$346.99, 2nd by White.  Motion carried.   


 Finance & Administrator: Motion by White to approve bills in the amount of 
$23,822.70, 2nd Rice.  Motion carried. 


 
6. Public Comment: None 
 
7. Insurance Report:  


 Builders Risk: Greg Query noted this item is on hold until after the Tuesday 
Board vote to choose the desired courthouse renovation contractor since we 
need specific project costs, deductibles, and time lines to move forward.   


 Property/Liability: No further updates 
 Health Insurance Renewal: Query presented the Ogle County Renewal 


Comparison summary highlighting current and optional renewal contracts.  
Rice motioned to secure the 103% County Insurance Renewal Plan with a 
$5,000 deposit (which will stop the underwriting process and apply to August 
premiums.)White 2nd.  Motion carried.  Rice commented we should consider 
passing the 3% increase through this year instead of absorbing it given current 
budget constraints.  Treasurer Coffman suggested reviewing this topic in more 
detail, which we have time to do given pass through rates wouldn’t start in 
Ogle County until December 1.  Query also indicated we must increase 
coverage up to age 26 for dependents, and requested that the committee vote 
to amend the plan accordingly in next month’s Finance Committee meeting.  


 Other Discussion:  
o Kenney noted that he, Greg Query and John Coffman visited the IPMG 


offices in St. Charles recently to review open workers comp files and 
procedures.  They were each pleased with the high levels of automation, 
effective organization, and current servicing levels, noting they were given 
access to everything they needed and treated with respect.     


o White asked where the claim hits if a county employee driving a county 
vehicle to work experiences an altercation in route but before their shift 







starts.  Query indicates he has seen coming and going included for an 
organization’s liability, while Kenney says he has seen coming and going 
not included.  Further discussion confirmed that sworn deputies are on 
duty any time in their call and are always covered.  There is less clarity 
relating to non-deputy jobs.  Query will follow up on this question to see 
what our possible exposure is.   


 
8. Finance Report: Treasurer Coffman solicited questions regarding the current month’s  


  General Fund Budget Performance report.  Discussion followed,   
  including: 


 Payments in Vacation: The committee voiced concern regarding the 
growing dollar amount of payments in vacation, which are often as large 
as the bills submitted to Committees for payment.  Saunders noted concern 
that these payments bypass the committee review process and create 
additional work outside the normal bill payment cycles. She recalls Bill 
Spencer passing a resolution stating payments in vacation was reserved for 
utilities, payroll, and some emergency billing.  Meggon McKinley agreed 
to work with the department heads to gain a better understanding of valid 
needs for payments in vacation and help minimize unnecessary requests.  
The Committee also asked her to identify specific credit card issuance and 
reimbursement needs within the departments since this often makes up a 
large portion of the payments in vacation amounts, presumably because 
we don’t want to miss timely payments and incur additional fees or 
interest.  The Committee would like to know if there is opportunity to 
change billing cycles to allow these to flow into the normal bill pay 
process.  John Coffman noted that if the volumes and needs are significant 
enough, we may want to consider moving to a County Purchasing card 
option, which allows specific limits and more controllable billing cycles.   


 Projected 2009 revenues and spend:  White noted that due to state income 
tax revenue decreases, our budget could potentially be off by about 
$400,000.  Coffman indicated he thinks we’ll be about $200-300k short 
with jail boarding coming in about $100,000 ahead of plan.  White noted 
specific areas where it appears departments are overspending, and if left 
uncorrected could result in a $500,000 overrun.  The Committee agreed 
they would like to better understand each department’s plans for staying 
within the approved 2009 budget to avoid problems later in the year.  
Meggon McKinley agreed to work with the department heads to 
understand and report back to the committee how each department is 
ensuring they stay within their 2009 approved budget.   


    
 
 
 
 
 
9. New Business:  







 Shortfall in Circuit Clerk Budget: Hopkins and Meggon McKinley met with 
Typer recently and he noted having a $4,500 grant check that might be used to 
offset some of the Circuit Clerk salary shortfall due to the recently negotiated 
labor contract.  McKinley presented this idea to the Committee, noting the 
discussion with Typer included discussions about trying to meet in the middle on 
the budget shortfall.  Discussion followed.  With the current budget pressures, the 
Committee decided they would like to wait to review McKinley’s summary of 
department plans to stay within the 2009 budget before taking any action on the 
Circuit Clerk budget shortfall.  McKinley will communicate this information to 
Mr. Typer.   


 Budget Planning Timeline: McKinley provided an update regarding the 2010 
projected budget planning timeline and recent discussions with the department 
heads focusing on balanced budgets within each department.  Such work is 
underway.  Preliminary discussions are taking place in June with department 
budgets due to McKinley July 16, after next month’s committee meetings.  The 
Committees will formally review the budgets August 11, 12.  The General Fund 
budget will be presented to the Finance Committee September 9 with final review 
October 14.  Public hearings and the initial County Board budget presentation are 
planned for October 20 with final presentation and adoption by the County Board 
November 17.   


 Change of Next Meeting Date/Time: Next month’s meeting will be moved to 
Tuesday July 14 at 1:00 in the Sheriff’s Training Room. 


 
10. Old Business:  
 
11. Adjournment: At 3:57 p.m. the meeting was adjourned by Hopkins.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Meggon McKinley 
Ogle County Administrator 








Finance & Insurance Committee Meeting 
 


May 13, 2009 
 


Tentative Minutes 
 


1. Call to Order: Chairman Lyle Hopkins called the meeting to order at 2:37 p.m. Present: Ben Diehl, Skip 
Kenney, Ed Rice, Paul White, Rich Gronewold and Pat Saunders. Others: Treasurer John Coffman, 
Health Dept. Administrator Doreen O’Brien, Greg Query – Query Insurance, Larry Callant, Jim Barnes, 
Bob DeArvil, Lynne Kilker and Katie Kwarta. 
 


2. Approval of Minutes: April 15, 2009: Motion by Rice, 2nd by Saunders to approve the minutes. Motion 
carried. 
 


3. Approval of Monthly Invoices: 
a. Treasurer Invoices: Motion by Saunders, 2nd by Diehl to approve the Treasurer bills in the 


amount of $2,152.16. Motion carried. 
 


b. Finance & Administration Invoices: Motion by Rice, 2nd by Diehl to approve the Finance & 
Administration bills in the amount of $26,675.13. White questions if the Springsted invoice was 
looked over carefully and Rice states it has been. Motion carried. Coffman informs the 
Committee that the Administrator Salary line item will fall short at the end of the fiscal year 
because of the additional expenses being paid from that line item. White states he is surprised at 
how well the budget is holding up, however a few depts. (Building & Grounds, Judicial & Jury, 
Probation, Focus House and Sheriff) need to cautious of their budgets.  
 


4. Public Comment: None 
 


5. Insurance Report: 
a. Builders Risk: Mr. Query states his concern for the Builders Risk Insurance, deductible is the 


main concern and need to verify County’s interest if contractor provides the policy. 
 


b. Property/Liability: Mr. Query distributes a worksheet showing 3 quotes from 3 different 
companies, some figures are not in yet. Discussion followed. A brief meeting will be held before 
the County Board Meeting on Tuesday and make a recommendation. 
 


c. Health Claims: Coffman distributes a worksheet with health claim totals year to date. 
 


6. Finance Report: 
a. Tax Cycle Update: Coffman states he has received the roll-over from the County Clerk’s office 


on Tuesday, he is hoping to print later this week with mail date of next week. He states it is 
roughly 2 weeks later than normal.  He had been hoping to get them out before the postage 
increase and mentioned that because of the delay that the taxing districts will receive a lesser 
percentage on their first distribution.  This is because they won’t have time to process all the 
payments and still make a distribution in early July as many districts need. 


7. New Business: 
a. Sam’s Club Proposal: Coffman informs the Committee about the Sam’s Club Membership 


discount that is available to County Employees. Saunders is opposed to the package; she feels 
they need to encourage shopping within the County versus out-of-county shopping. Discussion 
followed. Committee agrees they are not interested in offering the proposal to employees. 
 







b. List of Depositories of Public Funds: Coffman distributes and explains a resolution to be 
presented to the County Board, updating the list of banks that handle deposits for the Ogle 
County Treasurer. Discussion followed. 
 


c. Focus House Foundation: Saunders addresses the Committee in regards to the Focus House 
Foundation and their goal to purchase land and build one dormitory to house all residents versus 
2 buildings they currently have in Rochelle. She was interested in the Committee’s feedback and 
whether the County might be interested in helping with the project. Discussion followed. 
 


8. Old Business: 
a. IMRF: Coffman states he participated in a web-based seminar about the Employer rates for 


2010. He suggests at this time they follow the IMRF default increase of 10%, however they have 
a deadline of August 31st. 
 


9. Adjournment: Since no further business was before the Committee, Chairman Hopkins declared the 
meeting adjourned. Time: 4:04 p.m. 


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O'Brien 







 
 


Ogle County Special Finance Committee Meeting 
Tentative Minutes 


 
May 19, 2009 


 
 
 


 
• Chairman Hopkins calls the meeting to order at 5:15 pm. 
 
• Members Present: Hopkins, Rice, Kenney, Gronewold, Saunders and Diehl 
 
• Others Present: Treasurer Coffman, County Administrator McKinley, Greg Query and 


Laura Cook 
 
• Review  and discussion of Property/Liability Insurance quotes – figures were distributed 


and discussed – Saunders makes the motion to recommend US Specialty if they are within 
the estimates as submitted by Query – Coffman, Hopkins and McKinley to be in contact 
and approve for committee. Gronewold seconds. Motion carried. 


 
• Public Comment – none 
 
• There being no further business, Chairman Hopkins adjourns the meeting at 5:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laura J. Cook 





		May 13, 2009  Meeting

		May 19, 2009 Meeting






Resolution    2009-0608 
 


Resolution to Accept and Enter into a Contract  
Regarding the Ogle County Courthouse Renovation Project 


 
 


WHEREAS, The Long Range Planning Committee with the assistance of Holabird & Root 
solicited bids for the Ogle County Courthouse Renovation Project,  


 
WHEREAS, Holabird & Root opened bids at the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office at 2:00 p.m. on  
  Monday, May 11, 2009, in Oregon, Illinois,  
 
WHEREAS, The Long Range Planning Committee reviewed the bids submitted for the Ogle  
  County Courthouse Renovation Project at their regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday,  
  May 12, 2009 at 9:00 a.m.,  
 
WHEREAS, the low bid was submitted by: EVS Construction  
 


Bidder  Base Bid  Addenda  Bid   Performance   Builders  


   Amount  No.1 No.2 No.3  Deposit   Bond   Risk  


EVS Construction $5,070,000.00  Y Y Y 5% $38,000.00  $19,000.00  
 


Alt   Alt   Alt   Alt   Alt  Total Bid 
 No.1   No.2   No.3   No.4   No.5    


$174,000.00  $8,700.00  $86,200.00  $0.00  $31,700.00  $5,427,600.00  
 
 
WHEREAS, The Long Range Planning Committee has asked Holabird & Root to review the two  
  lowest qualified bids,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Ogle County Board accept and enter into a  
  contract with EVS Construction for the Ogle County Courthouse Renovation Project.   
 


Presented and Approved by the Ogle County Board on June 16, 2009. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
W. Ed Rice – Chairman 


Attest: 
 


_________________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley – County Clerk 








Judiciary & Circuit Clerk & Juvenile & Probation Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, June 9, 2009  


Tentative Minutes 
 


1. Call to Order: Chairman Nye call the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m. 
 
2. Members present:  Stahl, Kenney, Colbert and DeArvil.   
 
3. Members absent:  Messer 
 
4. Approval of Minutes: May 12, 2009: Motion to approve by Stahl, Colbert 2nd.  Motion 


carried. 
 
5. Public Comment: none  
 
6. Consideration of Monthly Invoices: 


 Focus House – motion by Stahl to approve $1523.71.  Kenney 2nd.  Motion carried 
 Probation – motion by Stahl to approve $8,510.  Kenney 2nd.  Motion carried.   
 Circuit Clerk – motion by DeArvil to approve $2446.15.  Kenney 2nd.  Motion carried.   
 Judiciary- Kenney motioned to approve $7902.43.  Colbert 2nd.  Motion carried.   
  


7. Department Reports: 
 Probation – Greg Martin introduced summer intern, Angie Martin, who resides in nearby 


Oregon, is finishing her bachelor’s degree from Western to become a Probation Officer.  
This internship will help her decide if she would like to focus on adult or youth 
probation.  He also provided monthly statistical reports of activity.   


 Focus House – Mike Dale provided monthly statistical reports of activity noting numbers 
are still lower due to out of county transfers being down, which is outside our control.  
They did lay off staff to accommodate this decrease in revenue. He also noted Ogle 
County was recognized by United Way for employees increasing their giving while 
others are not.  We also received the Goal Buster for increasing our giving over 15%.  
Mike Dale also noted that Focus House has been in negotiations and has purchased 10 
acres of land adjacent to the current location for future expansion.   


 Ogle County Reporting Center – provided the reporting center statistics and noted that 
the summer schedule has begun (days only.)   


 Circuit Clerk – Typer noted that the President of the Bar Association is doing fundraising 
for relay for life.  Mr. Tess will do his laps in his skivvies should we be able to produce 
$500.  We’re asking board members to contribute.  It will be Friday in Byron and 
Saturday in Rochelle.  He also noted Meggon McKinley will be talking with the Finance 
Committee regarding the Self Help grant refund check in the amount of $4,500.  Another 
$3,700 Self Help grant amount has been requested. Typer noted there is a $4 youth 
diversion fee that the Circuit Clerk is starting to collect and they are also working with 
the approved list of banks to stay in compliance.  He noted drug court and domestic 
violence courts will start August 14. The Circuit Clerk received the annual 7th graders 
from Mt. Morris to tour the Judicial Center. Finally, Typer provided copies of his annual 
report, which will be on the desks for the Board members at the upcoming board meeting.  
If anyone has any questions prior to county board meeting, they should call Typer.  The 
report is in the same format as previous years. 


 
8. New Business: None 







 
9. Old Business: None 
 
10. Adjournment: At 3:32 p.m., Motion by Stahl to adjourn, 2nd by Colbert. Meeting adjourns. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Meggon McKinley 
Ogle County Administrator 








Resolution    2009-0609 
 


Resolution to Accept and Enter into a Contract  
Regarding the Ogle County Courthouse Renovation Project 


 
 


WHEREAS, The Long Range Planning Committee with the assistance of Holabird & Root 
solicited bids for the Ogle County Courthouse Renovation Project,  


 
WHEREAS, Holabird & Root opened bids at the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office at 2:00 p.m. on  
  Monday, May 11, 2009, in Oregon, Illinois,  
 
WHEREAS, The Long Range Planning Committee reviewed the bids submitted for the Ogle  
  County Courthouse Renovation Project at their regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday,  
  May 12, 2009 at 9:00 a.m.,  
 
WHEREAS, the 2nd lowest bid was submitted by: Ringland-Johnson Construction 
 


Bidder  Base Bid  Addenda  Bid   Performance    Builders  
   Amount  No.1 No.2 No.3  Deposit   Bond   Risk  


Ringland-Johnson $5,187,000.00  Y Y  Y 5% $34,442.00  $7,500.00  
 


Alt   Alt   Alt   Alt   Alt  Total Bid 


 No.1   No.2   No.3   No.4   No.5    


$142,000.00  $12,625.00  $91,400.00 $0.00  $31,000.00  $5,505,967.00 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Long Range Planning Committee has asked Holabird & Root to review the two  
  lowest qualified bids,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Ogle County Board accept and enter into a  
  contract with Ringland-Johnson Construction for the Ogle County Courthouse   
  Renovation Project.   
 


Presented and Approved by the Ogle County Board on June 16, 2009. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
W. Ed Rice – Chairman 
 


Attest: 
 


_________________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley – County Clerk 








Ogle County Courthouse  
Project Description 
6-5-09 
 
Scope of Work Summary 
 
The base bid renovation of the Ogle County Courthouse includes the following major scope of work 
descriptions: 


1. Building Exterior 
a. Replacement of existing windows 
b. Installation of snow guards on the roof 
c. Installation of a new handicap ramp on the west side 
d. Repair of the existing exterior stairs and flanking marble walls 
e. Cleaning and repair of some brickwork 


 
2. Interior Spaces 


a. A complete remodeling of all usable building spaces including new walls, ceilings, and finishes 
b. Renovation of the existing elevator 
c. Refinishing of the existing east interior stair 
d. A new and enlarged boardroom on the third floor 


 
3. Mechanical Systems 


a. New heating ventilating and air conditioning systems, including a geothermal well and heat 
pump system 


b. New airhandling equipment 
c. A new sprinkler system 
d. New plumbing piping and fixtures 


 
4. Electrical Systems 


a. New power distribution including a new electrical transformer 
b. New lighting and lighting control system 
c. New Telephone system (voice over IP) 
d. New security system 
e. New IT distribution system 


 
5. Demolition  


a. Select demolition of existing bearing walls with reinforcement of new lintels 
b. Select demolition of existing floor structure for various mechanical openings 
c. New floor structure at existing spiral stair 
d. Reinforcement of select existing floor structure for heavy storage loads 
e. New light gauge structural support for hanging mechanical units 
f. New access walk-way for mechanical units in attic 
g. Select demolition of interior non-bearing walls. 


 
The bid documents identified five bid alternates. They are as follows: 
 
Alternate No. 1  Additional landscaping and hardscape on the west side of the courthouse including re-


paving of the existing parking lot. 
 
Alternate No. 2   Replacement of the existing curved concrete sidewalk east of the building 
 
Alternate No. 3  Add snow melt system and canopy to handicap ramp on the west side of the building. 
 
Alternate No. 4   This alternate was deleted 
 
Alternate No. 5   Add an emergency generator 
 







Ogle County Courthouse
Bid Review Summary


EVS Construction (EVS) Ringland Johnson  Construction (RJC)
1 Submitted Bids


A Base Bids 5,070,000$                                                                     5,187,000$                                                                     
B Alternates 300,600$                                                                        277,025$                                                                        
C Performance Bond 38,000$                                                                          34,442$                                                                          
D Builders Risk 19,000$                                                                          7,500$                                                                            


Total 5,427,600$                                                                     5,505,967$                                                                     


2 Firm Financial Status - Key Indicators


Total Current Assets = $2,329,293                                   
Cash = $494,253 (incl savings)                                         
Shareholders Equity = $1,500,980                                    
Net income (loss) = ($239,360)                                         
Retained Earnings = $1,220,980                                       
Backlog (Outstanding work) = $5,251,150                        
Estimated Profit Margin on Backlog = 2.6%                      
Li f C dit li it $200 000


Total Current Assets = $16,796,581                                 
Cash = $6,850,657                                                           
Shareholders Equity = $2,581,370                                   
Net Income = $467,503                                          
Retained Earnings = $1,717,300                                      
Backlog (Outstanding Work) = $24,021,000                     
Estimated Profit Margin on Backlog = 5.0%                     
Li f C dit Li it di l d


3 Years in Business/Licensing 17/General Contractor Licensed in Illinois 62/General Contractor Licensed in Illinois


4 Exp. with Projects of Similar Size/Scope


EVS has identified a number of projects of the same 
size or larger than the Courthouse project. Many of their 
projects are renovations. EVS has not completed 
renovations within any buildings on the historic register 
or within buildings built near the turn of the century.   


RJC has identified a number of projects of the same 
size or larger than the Courthouse project with many 
being historic renovations similar in size and scope to 
the Courthouse project. RJC averages 1 historic 
renovation project per year, including buildings on the 
historic register.  


5 Claims


EVS claims to never have failed to complete work 
awarded. EVS acknowledges a Workman's 
Compensation insurance claim involving a minor 
accident on a job. The claim was settled by EVS 
insurance carrier. EVS acknowledges filing a claim 
against an Owner over a delay claim regarding 
extended general conditions due to Owner changes.


RGC claims to never have failed to complete work 
awarded. RGC states no claims have been filed against 
it. RJC states that it has not filed any litigation in the 
last five years.


6 Total worth of work under contract  $                                                                    5,390,000  $                                                                  25,285,000 
7 5 Yr average annual construction  $                                                                  10,510,100  $                                                                  54,679,000 


8 Superintendent Experience


The designated field superintendent (Pat Giblin) 
resume shows extensive renovation experience, but 
none within historic buildings.  Please review his 
attached resume for more details.  


The designated field superintendent (Mike Brown) 
resume shows extensive renovation experience, 
including many within historic buildings.  Please review 
his attached resume for more details.  


9 Work performed with their own forces


Demolition, concrete and carpentry. Demolition, concrete, masonry, carpentry, moisture 
protection, doors and windows, finishes, specialty 
installation, equipment installation, furnishings 
installation


10 Experience with Geothermal Systems


EVS has identified experience with a geothermal 
system installed at the College of DuPage


RJC has identified experience with geothermal systems 
including projects at the University of Illinois, College of 
Medicine at Rockford, and Washington School in 
Belvidere.


11 Reference Checks
Please see attached Reference Summary Please see attached Reference Summary


 


Comments


EVS is the apparent low bidder by $117,000 when considering the base bid only.  Including the base bids, 
alternates, performance bond and Builders Risk Insurance, EVS is the apparent low bidder by $78,367. The 
Builders Risk Insurance for Ringling Johnson Construction is lower than that of EVS by $11,500. Builders Risk 
can be purchased by the Owner through the contractor or directly through the Owners Insurance company. 


6/5/2009


While RJC is clearly a larger company, both appear to be successfully managing their finances in a difficult 
economy. Both carry appropriate bonding for the current project, indicating reasonable safeguards to Ogle 
County.







Ogle County Courthouse Renovation Project 
Reference Summary 
June 4, 2009 


 
 EVS Construction Company Ringland Johnson Construction 
Reference 
Contacts 


1) Alleluia Lutheran Church 
 
2) East Aurora High School Freshman 
Center 
 
3) Opperman Architects 
 
4) Cardigan and Clark Architects 


1) Owner for Pearl Place Apts, Marquette Manor, Old 
Iowa Inn 
 
2) Owner for Van Allen Apts, Armstrong Apts, Clinton 
Block 
 
** Second reference also serves on the Advisory 
Board to the National Trust for Historic Preservation 


Experience w/ 
Historic Bldg 
Structures? 


No Yes 


Overall 
Impressions  


High quality of work, professional, 
proactive in setting expectations 


Professional, thorough, responsible, experts at 
knowing what to do/not do inside an historic 
structure 


Change 
Orders 


Honesty, fairness, smooth process Legitimate, valid change orders, proactively 
communicated, properly managed 


Subcontractor 
process 


Honesty, fairness, no problems Seamless, timely payments, no problems 


Successful 
history of job 
completion, on 
time schedules 


Outstanding.  East Aurora High School 
finished 2 months early.  Finished on 
time, and on budget, kept everyone 
informed along the way 
 


Outstanding.  Finished on time and on budget, kept 
you informed along the way.   


Superintendent 
experience 


Pat Gliblin is highly regarded, and 
described as “awesome to work with.”  
Easy going personality, proactive in 
suggestions, focused on solutions for 
betterment of the school district 


Mike Brown noted as outstanding resource, excellent 
& proactive communication.  “No one better, 
especially when it comes to working inside an historic 
building.” 


Other points to 
note 


Spoke highly of the weekly construction 
meetings EVS held to review status of 
projects, timeline, problems, solutions, 
and to keep everyone informed and 
properly set expectations.   


References noted how critical it is to engage a 
partner with extensive experience working inside 
historic structures because problems are unavoidable 
due to unfamiliar and complex building techniques 
used at the turn of the century.  (e.g., you cut 
something here and something crumbles there; or, a 
wall that doesn’t appear to be a load bearing wall 
may in fact turn out to be load bearing, etc.)   
 
References noted how critical it is to work with 
someone who has an historic structure mindset so 
they can anticipate problems, direct the 
subcontractors proactively to avoid problems, and 
provide unusual solutions to problems when they do 
arise based on past experience.   
  


 
 
 
  







 







 







Project Cost Summary 5/12/08
1 Construction Cost EVS RJC


     Base Bid 5,070,000$       5,187,000.00$                                                                        
     Performance Bond 38,000$            34,442.00$                                                                             
     Builders Risk Insurance 19,000$            7,500.00$                                                                               
     Alternate No. 1 174,000$          142,000.00$                                                                           
     Alternate No. 2 8,700$              12,625.00$                                                                             
     Alternate No. 3 86,200$            91,400.00$                                                                             
     Alternate No. 4 -$                  -$                                                                                        
     Alternate No. 5 31,700$            31,000.00$                                                                             


Sub Total of Bids Received 5,427,600$       5,505,967.00$                                                                        
     ComEd Utility Charge 17,000$            Allowance
     Construction Contingency 815,415$          Allowance of 7.5% of Construction Cost


80% Construction Cost Sub-Total 6,260,015$       
2 Furniture


     Moveable Furniture 337,200$          Budget Estimate
4% Furniture Cost Sub Total 337,200$          


3 Professional Fees
     A/E Fees 576,063$          8.5% of Construction + Furniture Cost+ Stencil Restoration
     Programming Fee 40,000$            Lump Sum Fee
     Reimbursable Expense Allowance 50,000$            Allowance
     Site Survey 5,000$              Allowance
     Geo-Thermal Test Boring 15,000$            Allowance
     Paint Historian 5,000$              Allowance
     Hazardous Material Assessment 5,000$              Allowance
     Hazardous Material Abatement 30,000$            Allowance
     Tree Removal 2,000$              Allowance
     Owners Contingency 75,000$            Allowance


10% Professional Fees Sub-Total 803,063$          
4 Owner Furnished Equipment


     A/V Equipment 10,000$            Allowance
     Security Equipment 10,000$            Allowance
     Telephone/Data Systems 25,000$            Allowance
     Departmental Signage 5,000$              Allowance


1% Owner Furnished Equipment Sub-Total 50,000$            
5 Costs Associated with Temporary Office Space


     Moving Costs 25,000$            Allowance
     Tempoary  Rental Space 75,000$            Allowance
     Watts building improvements 70,000$            Allowance


2% Temporary Space Sub-Total 170,000$          
6 Project Scope to be Completed


     Boardroom Stenciling
          Boardroom Stencil Restoration 145,000$          Allowance
          Plaster Restoration 35,000$            Allowance
          Stencil Mock-up 14,000$            Allowance
     Memorial Hall Mural Restoration
          Testing 3,000$              Allowance
          Mural & Wall Restoration 21,000$            Allowance
          Floor Plan Re-Design and Detailing 8,000$              Allowance
          Construction Cost 12,000$            Allowance


3% Project Scope to be Completed Sub-Total 238,000$          
Total Estimated Project Budget 7,858,278$      







 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


MEMO 
 
 
To: Ogle County Board 
From: Ben Roe 
Re: Awarding of Courthouse Renovation Bid 
Date: June 11, 2009 
 
 
 
Pursuant to the Illinois Procurement Code (30 ILCS 500/20-10(g)), “the contract shall be 
awarded with reasonable promptness by written notice to the lowest responsible and responsive 
bidder whose bid meets the requirements and criteria set forth in the invitation for bids, except 
when a State purchasing officer determines it is not in the best interest of the State and by written 
explanation determines another bidder shall receive the award.  The explanation shall appear in 
the appropriate volume of the Illinois Procurement Code.” 
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Resolution 2009-0606 
 
 
 
 


RESOLUTION FOR PURSUIT OF THE PREPARATION 
OF AN ALL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 


 
WHEREAS; Ogle County, Illinois would like to obtain grant money through the Disaster 
Mitigation Act of 2000, as money is available for Planning and Projects that can reduce or 
eliminate the damages caused by natural and man-made hazards such as rain, snow, wind, ice 
storms, floods, drought and earthquakes; and 
 
WHEREAS; Ogle County, Illinois must prepare an All Hazard Mitigation Plan before money 
can be released for projects; and 
 
WHEREAS; this plan will include a listing of potential projects and activities that can help 
reduce the damages caused by these storms; and 
 
WHEREAS; Ogle County will follow the next step in this process, which will be to prepare a 
grant application through Johnson, Depp & Quisenberry, an environmental and engineering 
consulting firm, for the preparation of this plan. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED; that the OGLE COUNTY BOARD does  
Hereby pass this resolution to pursue the preparation of an All Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
Presented and Adopted by the Ogle County Board on June 16, 2009. 
 
  
 


_________________________________ 
W. Ed Rice 


Ogle County Board Chairman 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley 
Ogle County Clerk and Recorder 
 





